
 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 
9751 Merced Falls Rd., La Grange, CA 95329 
(209) 852-2331 – www.ldpcsd.org 

DIRECTORS 
Danny Johnson, President 

Dan Hankemeier, Vice President 
Emery Ross 

Russell Warren 
James Sult 

 
 

Special Meeting of the Board of Directors 
December 14, 2017 at 1:00 p.m. 

9751 Merced Falls Road 
(This Meeting replaces the December 2017 Regular Board Meeting, which has been cancelled) 

 
Mission Statement: The Lake Don Pedro CSD is dedicated to providing our customers with ample 
quantities of high quality water meeting all standards, in a fiscally responsible manner. 

 
 

AGENDA 
1. CALL TO ORDER: Presiding Officer: Establish Quorum, Pledge of Allegiance: 

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Any person may address the Board at this time on any matter within the jurisdiction of the Board that is NOT ON THE AGENDA. 
A maximum of three minutes is allowed each person and a maximum of 20 minutes per topic. Any person wishing to address the 
Board on an item ON THE AGENDA will be given the opportunity at that time. Speakers are encouraged to consult District 
Management or Directors prior to agenda preparation regarding any District matters, as no action will be taken on non-agenda 
issues. 

 
 

3. PRESENTATION ONLY: 
a. Presiding Officer’s Report 
b. General Manager’s Report: Peter J. Kampa 

1. Update on the Regional Water Use Efficiency Program rebates 
2. Update on response to the Notice of Violation issued by the State Division of Water 

Rights  
3. Update on the water service line replacement project, including leak detection results 

c. Chief Plant Operator’s Report: R. Gilgo 
 

4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA: The following items may all be approved in one motion or 
considered separately as determined appropriate by the President 

a. Read and file the November 2017 Treasurer’s Report 
b. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Board meeting of November 20, 2017  
 

5. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS:  
a. Adoption of a Resolution approving the Multijurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation 

Plan which includes an annex for Lake Don Pedro CSD 
b. Discussion and potential action calling for applications for appointment of a 

director, in lieu of calling a special election, to replace Director James Sult who 
resigned effective January 1, 2018 due to the relocation of his primary residence 
outside of the District boundaries 

c. Conduct the annual Board reorganization to include the appointment of the office 
of President and Vice-President 

d. Discussion and potential action regarding amendment to the agreement with 
Kampa Community Solutions, LLC for management consulting services 

Page 1

http://www.ldpcsd.org/


Lake Don Pedro CSD 
Special Board Meeting of December 14, 2017 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
6. CLOSED SESSION: Public Comment will be taken on the item(s) below prior to the Board convening the Closed Session.  

Following Closed Session, the Board will reconvene the open session and publicly report any action taken.   
a. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

Government Code Section 54956.95 Title:  General Manager 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Meeting agendas and written materials supporting agenda items, if produced, can be received 
by the public for free in advance of the meeting by any of the following options: 

• A paper copy viewed at the District office, 9751 Merced Falls Rd., La Grange, CA 95329 
during business hours or mailed pursuant to a written request and payment of 
associated mailing fees 

• An electronic copy received by email. Note - a form requesting email delivery of agendas 
and/or meeting materials must be completed a minimum of one week in advance of the 
meeting 

• Viewed on the Board page of the District’s website 
• A limited number of copies of agenda materials will also be available at the meeting 

 
Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance: If you require special assistance to participate in 
Board Meetings, please contact the LDPCSD Board Secretary at (209) 852-2251 Ext. 2. 
Advance notification will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to insure 
accessibility. 

Page 2



REGIONAL WATER USE EFFICIENCY PROGRAM
REBATES PAID NOVEMBER 2017

ADDRESS REBATE TYPE MODEL
# OF 

UNITS
AMOUNT WATER CO/WELL

4512 VARAIN RD. MARIPOSA, CA 
95338

HE-TOILET
WATER SENSE 

TB3511-12
1 168.44$      PRIVATE WELL

7113 SNYDER RIDGE RD. 
MARIPOSA, CA 95338

HE-DISHWASHER
WHIRPOOOL 
WDT720PAD

1 200.00$      MPMWC

9511 MERCADO DR. LA GRANGE, 
CA 95329

HE-DISHWASHER
BOSCH 

SHX5AV56UC
1  $     200.00 LDPCSD

4164 TRIANGLE RD. MARIPOSA, CA 
95338

HE-CLOTHES 
WASHER

LG WM4370HWA 1  $     200.00 PRIVATE WELL

3210 E. WESTFALL RD. MARIPOSA, 
CA 95338

HE-TOILET WESTERN 822HY 2  $     165.00 PRIVATE WELL

4409 CORNETTS ENT RD. CATHEYS 
VALLEY,CA 95306

HE-DISHWASHER
KITCHEN AID 
KDTE 104 ESS

1  $     200.00 PRIVATE WELL

4409 CORNETTS ENT RD. CATHEYS 
VALLEY,CA 95306

HE-CLOTHES WASHE
WHIRPOOL 

WTW4816FW1
1  $     200.00 PRIVATE WELL

4409 CORNETTS ENT RD. CATHEYS 
VALLEY,CA 95306

HE-TOILET 
WESTERN 872HY 

WHT
2  $     286.80 PRIVATE WELL

7060 SNYDER RIDGE RD. 
MARIPOSA, CA 95338

HE-CLOTHES WASHE
KENMORE 

W10682720C
1  $     200.00 

7060 SNYDER RIDGE RD. 
MARIPOSA, CA 95338

HE-DISHWASHER
KENMORE 

W10747788A
1  $     200.00 

Page 1 of 4Page 3



REGIONAL WATER USE EFFICIENCY PROGRAM
REBATES PAID NOVEMBER 2017

ADDRESS REBATE TYPE MODEL
# OF 

UNITS
AMOUNT WATER CO/WELL

P.O.BOX 1639 MARIPOSA, CA 
95338

HE-CLOTHES WASHE KENMORE 22352 1  $     200.00 PRIVATE WELL

4586 JEANNINE LN. MARIPOSA,CA 
95338

SMART 
IRRIGATION 
CONTROL

ORBIT 57946 2  $     199.96 PRIVATE WELL

10324 GUSANILLO WAY. 
COULTERVILLE, CA 95311

HE-TOILET
AMERICA 

STANDARD 2403
1  $     200.00 LDP CSD #006272

9429 DOLOROSA ST. LA GRANGE, 
CA 

HE-CLOTHES WASHE
WHIRPOOL 

WFW72HEDW
1  $     200.00 LDP CSD

9429 DOLOROSA ST. LA GRANGE, 
CA 

HE-TOILET
AQUA SOURCE 

AT1203-00
3  $     295.45 LDP CSD

3330 TRIANGLE RD. / P.O.BOX 
1605 MARIPOSA, CA 95330

HE-CLOTHES WASHE
KENMORE 

110.2813*410
1  $     200.00 PRIVATE WELL

3674 ARBOLEDA DR. LA GRANGE, 
CA 95329

HC-CLOTHES WASHE
GE 

GFWR2700HWW
1  $     200.00 LDP CSD #101361

3342 CHICHARRA WAY. 
COULTERVILLE, CA 95311

HE-DISHWASHER
BOSCH 

SHP65T55UC/07
1  $     200.00 LDP CSD #100429

P.O. BOX 306 MARIPOSA, CA 
95338

HE-CLOTHES WASHE LG WT7200CW 1 200.00$      PRIVATE WELL

P.O. BOX 306 MARIPOSA, CA 
95338

HE-DISHWASHER
FRIGIDARE 

FGID247YQF
1 200.00$      PRIVATE WELL

Page 2 of 4Page 4



REGIONAL WATER USE EFFICIENCY PROGRAM
REBATES PAID NOVEMBER 2017

ADDRESS REBATE TYPE MODEL
# OF 

UNITS
AMOUNT WATER CO/WELL

5093 W. WITHLOCK RD. 
MARIPOSA, CA 95338

HE-DISHWASHER GE CDT835SSUSS 1  $     200.00 PRIVATE WELL

P.O.BOX 1128 MARIPOSA, CA 
95338

HE-CLOTHES WASHE LG WM4370HWA 1  $     200.00 MPUD

4586 JEANNINE LN. MARIPOSA,CA 
95338

NATIVE PLANTS 10 81.36$        PRIVATE WELL

4131 SILVER BAR RD. MARIPOSA, 
CA 95338

HE-DISHWASHER
KITCHEN AID 

KDFE104DSS5
1 200.00$      PRIVATE WELL

4878 LEONARD RD. SPC 2 
MARIPOSA, CA 95338

HE-TOILET GLACIER BAY 1 164.00$      PRIVATE WELL

5865 SHERLOCK RD. MIDPINES, CA 
95345

HE-TOILETS
A. STANDARD 

288CA.114.020
2 360.42$      PRIVATE WELL

10285 JALAPA WAY LA GRANGE, 
CA 95329 

HE-DISHWASHER
KENMORE ELITE 

14743
1 200.00$      LDP CSD 100825-000

P.O. BOX 182 MARIPOSA, CA 95338 HE-TOILET
A. STANDARD 740-

AA200.020
3 600.00$      PRIVATE WELL

P.O. BOX 1490 MARIPOSA, CA 
95338

NATIVE PLANTS 10 100.00$      PRIVATE WELL

2073 BUENAVISTA DR. LA 
GRANGE, CA 95329

HE-CLOTHES 
WASHER

SAMSUMG 1  $     200.00 LDP CSD # 102054

Page 3 of 4Page 5



REGIONAL WATER USE EFFICIENCY PROGRAM
REBATES PAID NOVEMBER 2017

ADDRESS REBATE TYPE MODEL
# OF 

UNITS
AMOUNT WATER CO/WELL

2073 BUENAVISTA DR. LA 
GRANGE, CA 95329

HE-DISHWASHER GE GDT625PGJ2 1  $     200.00 LDP CSD # 102054

4071 RAMSDEN RD. MARIPOSA, 
CA 95338

HE-TOILETS
A. STANDARD 
CHAMPION 4

1 188.00$      PRIVATE WELL

5277 HWY 49 N #12 IDLE WHEELS 
MARIPOSA, CA 95338

HE-DISHWASHER
WHIRPOOL 

665WD7320 
PADT

1 200.00$      

5236 MUELLER CT. MARIPOSA, CA 
95338

HE-TOLILETS
AMERICAN 
STANDAR 

H2OPTION 
2 400.00$      MPUD #04689

61 7,409.43$  

Page 4 of 4Page 6



Lake Don Pedro Community Services District
USDA Reimbursement Request #1

USDA Invoice Breakdown List

1 of 3

Date Invoice # Company Name
Task/
Phase 
Code

 Task/Phase 
Amount 

Funding 
Source

PPE #

10/15/15 10-15-02 Binkley Associates W5-1-6 420.00$             USDA 3
10/15/15 10-15-02 Binkley Associates W5-1-1 770.00$             USDA 3
01/10/16 01-16-02 Binkley Associates W5-1-6 700.00$             USDA 3
02/15/16 02-16-02 Binkley Associates W5-1-6 192.50$             USDA 3
04/16/16 04-16-02 Binkley Associates W5-1-6 87.50$                USDA 3
05/12/16 05-16-03 Binkley Associates W5-1-6 70.00$                USDA 3
05/25/16 05-16-04 Binkley Associates W5-1-6 210.00$             USDA 3
12/15/15 12-15-02 Binkley Associates W5-1-6 1,400.00$          USDA 3
09/25/15 6221 Contractor Compliance And Monitoring W5-1-6 950.00$             USDA 10
10/01/15 6318 Contractor Compliance And Monitoring W5-1-6 375.00$             USDA 10
05/31/16 7153 Contractor Compliance And Monitoring W5-1-6 75.00$                USDA 10
03/31/17 8372 Contractor Compliance And Monitoring W5-1-6 212.50$             USDA 10
05/01/17 8510 Contractor Compliance And Monitoring W5-1-6 170.00$             USDA 10
06/01/17 8638 Contractor Compliance And Monitoring W5-1-6 106.25$             USDA 10
06/30/17 8731 Contractor Compliance And Monitoring W5-1-6 127.50$             USDA 10
08/02/17 8874 Contractor Compliance And Monitoring W5-1-6 191.25$             USDA 10
12/02/16 7919 Contractor Compliance And Monitoring W5-1-6 191.25$             USDA 10
09/25/15 17983 Griswold, Lasalle, Cobb, Dowd, & Gin, L.L.P W5-1-6 100.25$             USDA 10
04/25/17 17983.055 Griswold, Lasalle, Cobb, Dowd, & Gin, L.L.P W5-1-6 356.50$             USDA 10
08/15/15 9049 Golden State Surveying W34-1-2 2,020.94$          USDA 5
11/14/15 Emergency7 Kampa Community Solutions W5-1-6 180.00$             USDA 6
11/14/15 Emergency7 Kampa Community Solutions W5-1-6 2,300.00$          USDA 6
11/14/15 Emergency7 Kampa Community Solutions W5-1-6 140.00$             USDA 6
11/14/15 Emergency7 Kampa Community Solutions W5-1-6 2,100.00$          USDA 6
01/08/16 Emergency8 Kampa Community Solutions W5-1-6 4,740.00$          USDA 6
03/13/16 Emergency2 Kampa Community Solutions W5-1-6 960.00$             USDA 6
06/02/16 Emergency4 Kampa Community Solutions W5-1-6 2,980.00$          USDA 6
09/04/15 95139 Kennedy/Jenks W5-1-6 4,705.30$          USDA 7
09/04/15 95140 Kennedy/Jenks W5-1-6 1,185.28$          USDA 7
09/04/15 95143 Kennedy/Jenks W5-1-6 1,875.25$          USDA 7
02/10/16 98997 Kennedy/Jenks W5-1-3 20,744.14$        USDA 8
02/10/16 98998 Kennedy/Jenks W34-1-2 7,329.06$          USDA 7
02/10/16 98998 Kennedy/Jenks W5-1-2 30,063.10$        USDA 7
04/13/16 100822 Kennedy/Jenks W5-1-2 5,022.50$          USDA 7
10/05/16 105187 Kennedy/Jenks W5-1-2 4,372.30$          USDA 7
10/04/16 105155 Kennedy/Jenks W34-1-3 381.30$             USDA 7
08/21/17 114877 Kennedy/Jenks W34-1-1 2,681.88$          USDA 7
08/21/17 114877 Kennedy/Jenks W5-1-1 2,681.87$          USDA 7
08/21/17 114878 Kennedy/Jenks W34-1-1 7,940.11$          USDA 7
08/21/17 114878 Kennedy/Jenks W5-1-1 7,940.11$          USDA 7
08/21/17 114876 Kennedy/Jenks W5-1-3 4,078.97$          USDA 7
08/21/17 114875 Kennedy/Jenks W34-1-1 5,525.00$          USDA 7
08/21/17 114875 Kennedy/Jenks W5-1-1 5,525.00$          USDA 7

https://kampacommunitysolutions-my.sharepoint.com/personal/pkampa_kampacs_com/Documents/LDPCSD/USDA/Reimbursement 
Request/USDA Reimbursement Request Invoice List Page 7



Lake Don Pedro Community Services District
USDA Reimbursement Request #1

USDA Invoice Breakdown List

2 of 3

Date Invoice # Company Name
Task/
Phase 
Code

 Task/Phase 
Amount 

Funding 
Source

PPE #

08/21/17 114880 Kennedy/Jenks W34-1-1 6,720.79$          USDA 7
8/21/2017 114880 Kennedy/Jenks W5-1-1 6,720.78$          USDA 7
11/16/2017 117113 Kennedy/Jenks W5-1-2 417.93$             USDA 7
11/16/2017 117113 Kennedy/Jenks W5-1-6 1,898.67$          USDA 7
FUTURE FUTURE Kennedy/Jenks W5-1-1 1,702.05$          USDA 7
11/09/15 NA Mariposa County W5-1-5 333.00$             USDA 10
12/03/15 00018587 Mariposa Gazette W5-1-3 537.30$             USDA 10
03/17/16 00018987 Mariposa Gazette W5-1-3 303.60$             USDA 10
03/24/16 00018995 Mariposa Gazette W5-1-3 303.60$             USDA 10
11/30/15 2222068 Western Communications W5-1-3 1,950.00$          USDA 10

Line Item #1: Planning, Engineering, Environmental W#-1-# 155,065.33$     

06/29/16 27185 Aqua Sierra Controls, Inc. W5-2-3 17,583.32$        USDA 1
09/11/15 50293 Barry Dugan Electric, Inc W5-2-5 2,791.80$          USDA 2
01/11/16 50599 Barry Dugan Electric, Inc W5-2-5 206.25$             USDA 2
02/16/16 50689 Barry Dugan Electric, Inc W5-2-5 4,771.52$          USDA 2
03/28/16 50783 Barry Dugan Electric, Inc W5-2-5 5,076.93$          USDA 2
03/28/16 50783 Barry Dugan Electric, Inc W5-2-7 8,647.48$          USDA 2
05/04/16 50858 Barry Dugan Electric, Inc W5-2-3 1,359.34$          USDA 2
06/08/16 50938 Barry Dugan Electric, Inc W5-2-3 4,449.60$          USDA 2
08/13/15 00-8823 Canepa and Sons W5-2-1 5,360.00$          USDA 4
12/02/15 00-8990 Canepa and Sons W5-2-1 1,850.00$          USDA 4
12/09/15 00-9001 Canepa and Sons W5-2-3 13,025.00$        USDA 4
01/11/16 00-9028 Canepa and Sons W5-2-3 170.00$             USDA 4
06/28/16 03831 Njirich & Son's, Inc W5-2-3 13,183.00$        USDA 9
06/28/16 03831 Njirich & Son's, Inc W5-2-4 8,665.00$          USDA 9
11/21/16 04052 Njirich & Son's, Inc W5-2-4 41,335.00$        USDA 9
11/21/16 04052 Njirich & Son's, Inc W5-2-7 2,612.50$          USDA 9
08/28/15 03755 Njirich & Son's, Inc W5-2-6 3,500.00$          USDA 9
07/09/15 0007456548-2 PG&E W5-2-5 1,000.00$          USDA 10
09/01/15 110490139E PG&E W5-2-5 11,153.50$        USDA 10

Line Item #2: Construction W5-2-# 146,740.24$     

10/31/15 9112 Golden State Surveying W5-3-2 738.00$             USDA 5
12/31/15 9185 Golden State Surveying W5-3-3 120.00$             USDA 5
09/04/15 95145 Kennedy/Jenks W5-3-1 916.50$             USDA 7
04/13/16 100823 Kennedy/Jenks W5-3-1 9,083.50$          USDA 7
04/13/16 100823 Kennedy/Jenks W5-3-3 2,418.50$          USDA 7
10/04/16 105157 Kennedy/Jenks W5-3-3 4,559.33$          USDA 7
11/16/17 117113 Kennedy/Jenks W5-3-4 5,000.00$          USDA 7

W5-3-# 22,835.83$        Line Item #3: Construction Management, 

https://kampacommunitysolutions-my.sharepoint.com/personal/pkampa_kampacs_com/Documents/LDPCSD/USDA/Reimbursement 
Request/USDA Reimbursement Request Invoice List Page 8



Lake Don Pedro Community Services District
USDA Reimbursement Request #1

USDA Invoice Breakdown List

3 of 3

Company Name
Aqua Sierra Controls, Inc
Barry Dugan Electric, Inc 1 155,065.33$   
Binkley Associates 2 146,740.24$   
Canepa and Sons 3 22,835.83$      
Golden State Surveying TOTAL 324,641.40$   
Kampa Community Solutions
Kennedy/Jenks
KJ Environmental
Njirich & Son's, Inc
Miscellaneous
The Source Group

4

Line Item 
Total1

2
3

 
Request Line 

Item

5

Partial Payment Estimate #

7

9
8

6

11
10

https://kampacommunitysolutions-my.sharepoint.com/personal/pkampa_kampacs_com/Documents/LDPCSD/USDA/Reimbursement 
Request/USDA Reimbursement Request Invoice List Page 9



Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Special Meeting of December 14, 2017 

AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

4. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA
a. Read and File the November 2017 Treasurer’s Report
b. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of November 20, 2017 

Recommended Motion 
Staff recommends the following motion:  
I move to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 

Background  
The November 20, 2017 Board Meeting minutes and approved Treasurer's Report are attached 
hereto for your review.  

 
 .   

Page 10



 
Lake Don Pedro Community Services District                                             DIRECTORS 
9751 Merced Falls Rd., La Grange, CA 95329          Danny Johnson, President 
(209) 852-2331 – www.ldpcsd.org                                       Dan Hankemeier, Vice President 
                           Emery Ross 
             Russell Warren 
                    James Sult  
 

Regular Meeting Minutes of the Board of Directors 
9751 Merced Falls Road, La Grange CA 

95329 
November 20, 2017 at 1:00 p.m. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER: Presiding Officer: Establish Quorum, Pledge of Allegiance: 

 The Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District held a regular 
 meeting at 9751 Merced Falls Rd., La Grange, CA 95329.  
                    President Johnson called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.  
                    Directors present: Johnson, Hankemeier, Ross, Sult, and Warren  
                    Also present: GM P. Kampa  
                    Also present: Staff S. Marchesiello  

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT: 

      One public members spoke 
 

3. PRESENTATION ONLY: 
a. Presiding Officer’s Report 

None given at this time 
 

b. General Manager’s Report: Peter J. Kampa 
• Report on Leak Detection Services 
• Report on new laws for 2018 

      Presented by GM P. Kampa 
 

c. Chief Plant Operator’s Report: R. Gilgo 
 Presented by GM P. Kampa 

 
4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA: The following items may all be approved in one 

motion or considered separately as determined appropriate by the President 

a. Read and file the October 2017 Treasurer’s Report 
b. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of October 16th, 2017 

 
 Motion: To approve the consent calendar with corrections 
  Votes: Carried 5-0  
    First: Hankemeier  Second: Sult 
   Ayes: Hankemeier, Sult, Ross, Warren, Johnson 
 Nays: None  

 
5. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS 

a. Discussion and potential action regarding a request for proposals to secure an 
independent contractor to provide operations staffing services. 
No action taken Page 11

http://www.ldpcsd.org/


b. Discussion and potential action related to an Outside Place of Use Compliance 
Plan as required by the State Division of Water Rights 
 

 Motion: To approve the recommended motion to approve the Outside Place of Use 
 Compliance Plan as presented / amended 
  Votes: Carried 5-0  
    First: Ross  Second: Warren 
   Ayes: Ross, Warren, Hankemeier, Sult, and Johnson 
 Nays: None   
 

c. Adoption of a resolution authorizing the General Manager to execute a 
grant agreement with the California Department of Water Resources for 
funding for the Water Service Line Replacement Project. 
 

 Motion: To approve the recommended motion to adopt the resolution authorizing 
 the General Manager to execute a grant agreement with the California Department of 
 Water Resources for funding for the Water Service Line Replacement Project 
  Votes: Carried 5-0  
    First: Hankemeier  Second: Warren 

   Ayes: Hankemeier, Warren, Sult, Ross, and Johnson 
 Nays: None  

 
d. Adoption of a Resolution approving the Multijurisdictional Local Hazard 

Mitigation Plan which includes an annex for Lake Don Pedro CSD. 
Consensus of the board to have a special meeting for additional 
detailed information prior to the Tuolumne County meeting.  

 
Closed Open Meeting: 3:37 p.m. 

 
6. CLOSED SESSION 

a. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) or (3) of subdivision (d) of 
Government Code Section 54956.9: (1 case) 

b. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT 
Government Code Section 54956.95, Title: Operations Manager 

c. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
Government Code Section 54956.95 Title: General Manager 
 

 Reconvene: 5:02 p.m. 
 Report Out: There was no action taken on items (6.) a, b, & c.   

 
7. ADJOURNMENT:  5:08 p.m. 

 
 Respectfully submitted by,  
 
 S. Marchesiello  

 Board Secretary 

Page 12



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tuolumne County 
Multi-Jurisdictional 

Hazard Mitigation Plan 
2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Annex V: Lake Don Pedro 
Community Services District 

Page 13



 
 

ANNEX V: LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

 I. JURISDICTION PROFILE .......................................................................................................4 
 

II.  PLANNING PROCESS...............................................................................................................5 
 

  A. DMA 2000 Requirements .............................................................................................................5 
 

B. Plan Development and Public Input Process ..........................................................................5 
 

 C. Jurisdiction Specific Planning and Approval Process ............................................................6 
 

III.  RISK ASSESSMENT.................................................................................................................7 
 

 A. DMA 2000 Requirements ............................................................................................................7 
 

 B. Jurisdiction Specific Risks ...........................................................................................................7 
 

 C. Jurisdiction Specific Hazard Event History..............................................................................8 
 

   D. Jurisdiction Specific Hazard Ranking .....................................................................................10 
 

 IV. VULNERABILITY ASSESSMENT ........................................................................................11 
. 

A. Overview ......................................................................................................................................11 
 

B. DMA 2000 Requirements ..........................................................................................................12 
 

C. Critical Facilities and Infrastructure .......................................................................................12 
 

D. Jurisdictional Assets at Risk to Applicable Hazards .............................................................13 
 

E. Methodology Used ......................................................................................................................13 
 

F. Loss Estimations..........................................................................................................................13 
 

G. Development Trend Analysis .....................................................................................................14 
 

V. CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT....................................................................................................14 
 

A. Legal and Regulatory .................................................................................................................14 
 

B. Administrative and Technical ...................................................................................................14 
 

C. Financial ......................................................................................................................................15 
 

D. Physical Assets ............................................................................................................................15 
 

E. Political Will of Community ......................................................................................................15 
 

VI. MITIGATION STRATEGY ......................................................................................................15 
 

A. DMA 2000 Requirements ..........................................................................................................15 
 

B. 20013 Mitigation Action Progress Report ...............................................................................15 
 

C. Goals, Objectives and Mitigation Actions 2018 ......................................................................17 
 

D. How Mitigation Goals Address Buildings and Infrastructure .............................................25 
 

VII. MITIGATION ACTION IMPLEMENTATION ...................................................................29 
 

A. DMA 2000 Requirements ..........................................................................................................29 
 

B. Prioritization of Mitigation Actions .........................................................................................29 
 

 Page 14



 
C. Action Plan.................................................................................................................................30 
D. Implementation Through Existing Plans and Programs .....................................................35 

 

E. Continued Public Involvement.................................................................................................35 
 

F. Plan Maintenance, Updating and Evaluating .......................................................................35 
 

               ACRONYMS......................................................................................................................................37 
 

 Plan Approval Documentation - Resolution No. 2017-19..........................................................38 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 15



 
LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
I. Jurisdiction Profile 

 

The Lake Don Pedro Community Services District (LDPCSD) provides municipal potable water services to 
a current population of 2,700 through approximately 1,400 active connections in the rural residential 
community of Don Pedro; which lies between Lake McClure and Lake Don Pedro in Mariposa and 
Tuolumne Counties.  The LDPCSD water system is also designed to serve an additional 1,900 vacant parcels 
that exist within the community.  The LDPCSD service area is composed of 60 percent Mariposa County 
parcels (1,920 parcels), and 40 percent Tuolumne County parcels (1,280 parcels).  

 
The L D P C S D  water supply is derived 
from surface water from Lake McClure; 
through a contract with Merced Irrigation 
District, and four groundwater wells.  The 
Lake McClure surface water intake consists 
of two 200 Horsepower submersible pumps 
fixed to the shore of the reservoir and 
capable of pumping down to a water surface 
elevation of 710 above sea level.  An 
emergency floating  pump system is used to 
pump water from Lake McClure when the 
water surface elevation drops below 710 
feet ASL, down to a minimum pool 
elevation of 560 feet ASL; beyond which 
no surface water is available.  One 
groundwater well was installed to provide 
water supply to LDPCSD customers 
outside of the Place of Use for Lake 
McClure water supply under the MEID 
water right, and three additional wells were 
installed to provide emergency water 
supply during the drought of 2013 – 2016; 
at which time the Lake McClure water 
surface elevation was predicted to drop 
below 560 ASL.    
 
 
 

 

Page 16



The estimated yield of the four wells combined is approximately 355 gallons per minute, and the peak 
customer water demand, under mandatory 50% water restrictions, was approximately 464 gallons per 
minute in July 2015. 
 
The LDPCSD water treatment plant is a conventional filtration system surface water plant, and its water 
distribution system consists of 7 treated water storage tanks, 1 raw water storage tank, six booster pump 
sites, three hydropneumatics systems, eleven pressure regulating stations, 821 main isolation valves 
and 485 fire hydrants.   Water mains range in size from 2-inch PVC to 12-inch asbestos cement.   

 
 

II.    PLANNING PROCESS 
 

A. DMA 2000 Requirements 
 
 

DMA Requirements An open public involvement process is essential to the development of 
§201.6(b) and an effective plan. In order to develop a more comprehensive approach 
§201.6(c)(1): to reducing the effects of natural disasters, the planning process 

shall include: 
(1) An opportunity for the public to comment on the plan during 
the drafting stage and prior to plan approval; 
(2) An opportunity for neighboring communities, local and regional 
agencies involved in hazard mitigation activities, and agencies that 
have the authority to regulate development, as well as businesses, 
academia and other private and non-profit interests to be involved in 
the planning process; and 
(3) Review and incorporation, if appropriate, of existing plans, 
studies, reports, and technical information. 
The plan shall document the planning process used to develop the 
plan, including how it was prepared, who was involved in the process, 
and how the public was involved. 

 
 

 
B.   Plan Development and Public Input Process/Countywide Elements 

Volume 1 is the master planning document which contains all elements applicable to the County of 
Tuolumne and each of the 22 individual jurisdictions.  Plan development commenced with a review and 
revision of the updated 2013 Hazard Mitigation Plan.   Each of the participating jurisdictions participated 
fully in the mitigation plan update. 

A news release was developed and issued and informative letters were sent out to community groups and 
neighboring jurisdictions inviting public participation. A Hazard Mitigation Planning Group was 
constructed with representatives from all involved jurisdictions and community stakeholders.  Planning 
group meetings were held which explained the process that was going to be taken to construct the new 

Page 17



plan, reviewed hazards of concern and hazard rankings, and explained the risks and vulnerability to the 
communities’ people, buildings and infrastructure.   Mitigation goals, objectives and actions were 
discussed and reviewed thoroughly with all planning group members until concurrence was reached.  A 
capability assessment and action plan were developed to ensure mitigation actions were realistic and 
attainable and to assign funding sources and responsibility for each proposed activity. 
 
After the MJHMP Planning Group Members, their respective jurisdictions, and Tuolumne County Office 
of Emergency Services were all satisfied with the newly updated draft plan and its mitigation goal, 
objectives and actions, a noticed public hearing occurred at the County Emergency Operation’s Center. 
This meeting was widely advertised both locally and in neighboring counties to provide an opportunity 
for the general public, bordering communities and regional agencies involved in hazard mitigation 
activities to participate in the planning process.  Notice of the public hearing was posted, two weeks in 
advance, on the County website, community bulletin boards and through a press release.  Notification 
letters were sent to Office of Emergency Services managers in all neighboring Counties.  Several weeks 
prior to the hearing, the newly constructed Plan was posted on the County website to enable the public 
and stakeholders ample time to read and evaluate it.  A Power Point presentation was developed that 
provided a detailed explanation of the risks and vulnerabilities the community faced. 
 
The mitigation goals, objectives and actions were explained in detail as were the resources that would be 
used to help mitigate these hazards.  In addition, the general public had an opportunity to ask questions 
and comment on the proposed plan and each of the annexes as they moved through the approval process 
for Tuolumne County and each of the participating jurisdictions. All comments were reviewed with the 
stakeholder group and incorporated into the plan as appropriate. 

 
C.     Jurisdiction Specific Planning and Approval Process 

 

The district manager for Lake Don Pedro CSD participated in the Hazard Mitigation Planning Group.  
He reviewed the findings with special  attention  being  paid  to  the  issues  of  wildland  fire  and  extreme 
weather  preparedness.    The district manager’s input was incorporated into both draft and final 
documents, and reviewed by District staff.  A staff report was prepared and made available to the general 
public for comment and was eventually forwarded to the Lake Don Pedro CSD Board of Directors.  A 
public meeting was held within the jurisdiction; input was received from the general public and 
incorporated into the final approved agency specific plan. 
 
Adoption by the District demonstrates the jurisdiction’s commitment to fulfilling the hazard mitigation 
goals and actions outlined in the plan.  Adoption legitimizes the plan and authorizes the District to execute 
its responsibilities. 

 
 

 
  

Page 18



III. RISK ASSESSMENT 
 

 
A. DMA 2000 Requirements 

 
DMA Requirement The risk assessment shall include a description of the type 
§201.6(c)(2)(i): of all natural hazards that can affect the jurisdiction. 

 
DMA Requirement The risk assessment shall include a description of the 
§201.6(c)(2)(i): location and extent of all natural hazards that can affect the 

jurisdiction. The plan shall include information on previous 
occurrences of hazard events and on the probability of 
future hazard events. 

 
DMA Requirement For multi-jurisdictional plans, the risk assessment must assess 
§201.6(c)(2)(iii): each jurisdiction’s risks where they vary from the risks facing 

the entire planning area. 
 
 
 

B. Jurisdiction Specific Risks 
 

While a detailed hazard description and analysis can be found in the individual hazard profiles found in 
Volume 1 of this plan, as outlined below the District is susceptible to the following hazards. 

 
Jurisdiction Earthquake Wildfire Extreme 

Weather 
Flood Volcano Haz Mat Sinkholes 

Lake Don 
Pedro CSD 

 

              

 
Hazard Specifics: The Lake Don Pedro Community Services District has several unique risks which are 
listed below: 

 
� The majority of the LDPCSD water system is made up of miles of inflexible asbestos cement 

(AC) pipe, which is subject to damage and failure from an earthquake, sinkholes and similar 
ground shifting.  AC water main ruptures can drain the treated water supply from system tanks 
in minutes, and cause washout damage to roads and properties.   

 
� The functionality of the LDPCSD water system and its 460 fire hydrants relies on a continuous 

source of electrical power.  The District tanks only fill when pumps have power to operate, and 
to fill some tanks, the water is pumped up three times by means of electric powered booster 
pumps.  The LDPCSD treatment plant and booster pump locations are very susceptible to damage 
from wildfire, and power outages result in the inability to fill water tanks to keep hydrants 
charged. 

 

� Extended drought causes the Lake McClure water surface elevation to fluctuate widely, 
regularly dropping below the District’s submersible pumps.  The District emergency pumping 
system is not capable to operate for extended periods and has deteriorated to the point of being 

Page 19



decommissioned in 2016 after three years of continuous operation. Lake McClure surface 
water is not available in the area of the emergency pumps below elevation 560 feet ASL; at 
which point groundwater is the only water supply available.  District groundwater supply is 
not adequate to meet summer water demand, even with 50% mandatory water use restrictions.    

 
 

C.   Jurisdiction Specific Hazard Event History 
 

While a detailed hazard history can be found in the individual hazard profiles found in Volume 1 of this 
plan, the following events are specific to the District or have occurred in close proximity: 

 
Earthquake History 

 

Historically, earthquake activity in Tuolumne County is significantly below the California state average. 
In fact, it has one of the lowest earthquake risks in the State. As outlined below, a total of 5 
historical earthquake events with recorded magnitudes of 3.5 or greater occurred in or near (50 Miles) 
Tuolumne County this past century. 

 
 

Date Description Distance from Sonora Impacts 
March 26, 1872 7.6 – 8.0 Magnitude Epicenter Unknown Unknown 

June 25, 1933 6.1 Magnitude 49.6 Miles Unknown 
June 10, 1965 3.5 Magnitude 42.6 Miles None 
August 10, 1975 4.0 Magnitude 44.3 Miles None 
August 9, 1983 4.0 Magnitude 40.8 Miles None 

 
 
Extreme Weather History 

 

Date Description Impacts 
1989 - 1992 Severe localized drought Near loss of surface water supply 

2012 - 2016   Severe drought Loss of surface water supply due to regulatory 
restrictions 

 
 
  

Page 20



Flood History 
 

DATE EVENT DETAILS 
Winter of 
1887 

The earliest record rainfall amount found in The Union Democrat indicates 
that 67 inches of rain fell.  No damages were noted. 

December 
of 1964 

The County Board of Supervisors declares a state of emergency based on 
localized flooding within the County. 

Winter of 
1969 

A series of cold storms dropped 8 inches of snow on the City of Sonora, 
elevation 1800 feet. The snow stayed on the ground for a full week as a cold 
front moved in behind the last storm. The County came to a standstill as the 
limited numbers of snow plows were unable to keep the roads open. Flooding 
was reported as snow melted. 

February 
of 1986 

Early season storms completely saturated the soils.  A fast moving rain storm 
in February caused Sonora Creek to overbank flooding the Mother  Lode 
Fairgrounds. 

March  of 
1995 

The Governor of California request federal assistance after the County Board 
of Supervisors declares a state of emergency based on localized flooding 
within the County. 

April of 
2006 

On  April  11  the  Board  of  Supervisors  passed  an  Emergency Resolution 
proclaiming the existence of a local emergency due to a series of winter 
storms that had “caused conditions of extreme peril to the safety of persons 
and property because of localized flooding in the County of Tuolumne”. In 
Sonora proper, Sonora High was flooded as Sonora Creek overbanked. 

March 
2011 

With the season rainfall accumulations of nearly 60 inches, a late season storm, 
accompanied by extremely high winds, caused nearly $750,000 in damages 
across the county. Damages to the flume systems, roadways, electrical 
distribution  system and tree  damage  to numerous residences resulted in a 
request for a Federal Disaster Declaration. 

 

 
Local Lake Don Pedro Community Drought History 

 

Date EVENT DETAILS 
1989 - 
1992 

Precipitation was far below normal in the region during the winters of 1989, 
1990, 1991 and 1992, causing the Lake McClure water level to drop 120 
feet below LDPCSD pumps.  Emergency floating pumps were launched and 
operated in 1991 and 1992 to provide community water supply 

2013 - 
2016 

Beginning in the winter of 2012/13, precipitation was far below normal causing Lake 
McClure water level to drop 130 feet below LDPCSD pumps, resulting in the launch 
of the emergency floating pumps in October 2013.  By January 2015, predictions 
placed the lake water level below the emergency pumps within 60 days.  On January 1, 
2016, the state prohibited further pumping from Lake McClure creating a surface 
water outage and reliance on minimal local groundwater 

 
 

Page 21



Volcanic History 
There is no history of volcanic activity in recorded history.  The proximity to volcanic active areas 
does present a remote threat of ash fall and the associated respiratory illnesses. 

 
 

Hazardous Materials 
While there is not a significant history of hazardous material spills or releases in the immediate area the 
location of Highway 49 parallel to and above the Merced River canyon as it enters Lake McClure make 
the threat of hazardous materials spills in Lake McClure near the LDPCSD water intake a distinct 
possibility. 

 
 

Sinkholes 
There is a poorly documented history of small sinkholes and subsidence as a result of mining activity 
and the occurrence below ground of carbonated rock formations.  There are no recorded events of 
significance. 

 
Wildfire 
In 2017, two wildfires occurred within the District boundaries causing minor localized structure damage, 
but threatening the entire community.   Water supply from the LDPCSD system was used to assist in 
controlling these fires quickly.  In addition, major wildfires occurred in 2017 adjacent to the District 
boundaries  (Detweiler Fire), causing  major losses of structures, power outages, and threatening the 
water supply and pumping facilities of the District.   
 

Date Description Impacts 
August,  1987 Stanislaus Complex 6 major fires burn 145,950 

acres, 28 structures, and 1 life 
was lost. 

September,  2004 Tuolumne Fire 750 acres burned and 1 
firefighter fatality. 

August 2013 Rim Fire 257,314 acres burned 
112 Structures destroyed 

October 2017 Detwiler Fire 81,826 acres burned 
63 residences, 67 minor 
structures and 1 commercial 
structure destroyed 

 
 

D.   Jurisdiction Specific Hazard Ranking 
 

Given the past history, the current conditions, and the overall life and property threat to the Lake Don 
Pedro Community Services District the Planning Committee has deemed the probability and severity 
of each hazard as follows: 

 

Page 22



Lake Don 
Pedro CSD 

Wildfire Earthquake Extreme 
Weather 

Flood Volcano Haz 
Mat 

Sinkholes 

Probability H L H M L M L 
Severity H H H M L L L 

                          L = Low, M= Medium, H = High 
 

III. VULNERABILITY ASSESSMENT  

   A. Overview 
 

The vulnerability assessment is a summary of the hazard’s impact to the District’s vulnerable structures. 
District assets and development trends will be identified and assessed with respect to the developed 
hazard profiles to ascertain the potential amount of damage that could ensue from each identified hazard. 
This section will include: 1) A description of the critical buildings and infrastructure within the study 
areas including future building and land use decisions.  2) A general description of the extent of each 
hazard’s impacts to these vulnerable structures, 3) An estimate of the potential dollar losses to vulnerable 
structures. 
 

 

B. DMA 2000 Requirements 
 

DMA Requirement The risk assessment shall include a description of the jurisdiction’s 
§201.6(c)(2)(ii):                     vulnerability to the hazards described in paragraph (c)(2)(i) of this 

section. This description shall include an overall summary of each 
hazard and its impact on the community. 

 
DMA Requirement The plan should describe vulnerability in terms of the types and 
§201.6(c)(2)(ii)(A): numbers of existing and future buildings, infrastructure, and critical 

facilities located in the identified hazard areas. 
 

DMA Requirement [The plan should describe vulnerability in terms of an] estimate of the 
§201.6(c)(2)(ii)(B): potential dollar losses to vulnerable structures identified in paragraph 

(c)(2)(i)(A) of this section and a description of the methodology used 
to prepare the estimate . 

 
DMA Requirement [The plan should describe vulnerability in terms of] providing a 
§201.6(c)(2)(ii)(C): general description of land uses and development trends within the 

community so that mitigation options can be considered in future 
land decisions. 

 
DMA Requirement For multi-jurisdictional plans, the risk assessment must assess each 
§201.6(c)(2)(iii): jurisdiction’s risks where they vary from the risks facing the entire 

planning area. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



C. Critical Facilities and Infrastructure 
 

Critical facilities and infrastructure are those systems within each community whose incapacity or 
destruction would have a debilitating effect on the community’s ability to recover subsequent to a major 
disaster.  The following critical facility and infrastructure are categorized as follows: 

 
1.   Emergency Services for the health and welfare of the whole population (e.g., hospitals, police, 

fire stations, emergency operations centers, evacuation shelters, schools). 
 
 

2.   Lifeline Utility Systems such as potable water, wastewater, oil, natural gas, electric power and 
communications systems. 

 
 

3.   Transportation Systems including railways, highways, waterways, airways and city streets to 
enable effective movement of services, goods and people. 

 
 

4.   High Potential Loss Facilities such as power plants, dams and levees. 

Page 24



 

D. Jurisdictional Assets at Risk to Applicable Hazards 
 

 
 
 
 
Critical Facilities and 
Infrastructure 

 

 
 
 
 

Address 

 

 
 
 
 
Building Value 

W
ild

fir
e 

Fl
oo

d 

 

E
ar

th
qu

ak
e 

 

La
nd

sl
id

es
/ S

in
kh

ol
es

  

V
ol

ca
no

 

 

Ex
tr

em
e W

ea
th

er
 

 

H
az

ar
do

us
 M

at
er

ia
ls

  

Water Treatment 
Plant 

9751 Merced Falls Rd., La 
Grange 9329 

$12,000,000.              

Water Tanks (7 locations) Throughout LDPCSD $7,000,000.              

Lake McClure Pumping  
Station 

Barrett Cove Road, Barrett 
Cove Marina, Lake McClure 

$5,000,000              

Booster Pump Stations (6 
locations) 

Throughout LDPCSD $1,500,000              

Water Distribution 
System including 480 Fire 
Hydrants 

Throughout LDPCSD $15,000,000.              

 
 

E.   Methodology Used 
 

To determine the number of critical structures and infrastructure at risk, a combination of field surveys, 
aerial photos, GIS maps, and Google Earth software were used. The methodology used in preparing the 
Vulnerability Estimate consisted of determining the value of critical buildings and facilities from insurance   
property   schedules.   Critical   infrastructure   values   were   established   by  using   actual replacement 
costs which were determined by recent comparable replacement projects. 

 
 
 

F.     Loss Estimations 
 

Dollar losses to buildings and infrastructure vary depending upon the natural hazard occurring and the 
severity of the hazard. In general, earthquakes can extensively damage a wide area therefore critical 
structure and infrastructure losses should be estimated at a 100% value. Destruction from flooding takes 
place in specific areas and the damage is historically less severe than that of an earthquake. Thus, the 
estimated loss as a result of flooding should be calculated at the 50% level. Damage resulting from 
wildfires should be calculated at 25% of structural value for those structures located within 300 feet of 
the wildfire  areas.  Extreme weather  could  impact  any  portion  of  the  jurisdiction.  Historical data 
indicates that these events are extremely localized and a 10% loss should be anticipated. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 25



G.   Development Trend Analysis 
 

While the population of Tuolumne County is not expected to grow significantly in the next five years, 
there are Land Use policies and elements within the County General Plan to help assure orderly development 
when it does occur. 

 
In addition, the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) of Tuolumne County is tasked with the 
mission to provide an orderly pattern of growth that reconciles the varied needs of the County.  One of 
the fundamental principles of LAFCO is to ensure the establishment of an appropriate and logical municipal 
government structure for the distribution of efficient ad appropriate public services. LAFCO Land Use 
Objectives include: 

 
� The discouragement of urban sprawl 
� Preservation of the physical and economic integrity of agricultural lands 
� Preservation of open space within urban development patterns 
� Orderly formation and development of agencies by shaping local agency boundaries 
� The minimization of agencies providing services to a given area 
� Utilization of Spheres of Influence to guide future development of agency boundaries 

 

 

IV.   CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT 
 

The following resources are available to the jurisdiction in order to mitigation the effects of the identified 
hazards: 

 
A.   Legal and Regulatory 

 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District (JSD) is a Special District formed pursuant to California 
Government Code 61000 et seq. The LDPCSD is governed by an elected 5 person Board of Directors. Legal 
services (District Counsel), financial audits and district engineering services are provided by independent 
consultants on an as required and needed basis as appointed by the Board of Directors. 

 
B.    Administrative and Technical 

 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District has well qualified staffing and organizational capability. 
Under the policy direction of the Board of Directors, the General Manager is responsible for the day to day 
management of the district finances, facilities, personnel and services.  Under direction of the General 
Manager, an Office Manager is responsible for the district records, accounting functions and Board records.  

 
Field staff, under the direction of the Water Operations Manager, consists of certified water treatment plant 
and water distribution system operators; certified by the State of California.  The field staff is responsible 
for the day to day operation of the water treatment plant and operation/maintenance of the water distribution system 
of the District. 

 

General engineering (District Engineer) is provided by an independent consultant on an as needed basis and 
under the direction of the General Manager. Other specialty consultants are hired on an as needed basis 
to perform independent auditing, long term planning and design for water system needs. 

Page 26



 

C.   Financial 
 

The District  is  funded by user  fees  for operations  and  maintenance.  Capital improvements  projects 
are  funded  by  user fees, developer  capacity/connection  fees  and  grant/loans  as  available.  Reserve 
funds  are available for unanticipated operating expenses, but would be insufficient in a catastrophic event. 

 
D.     Physical Assets 

 

The District has adequate manpower, contractors, equipment and resources to plan and implement the 
hazard mitigation projects identified, and to conduct major system repairs. 

 
 

E.    Political Will 
 

The District’s Board of Directors recognizes the need for promoting, planning and implementing 
hazard mitigation strategies. The reduction in potential effects from a natural disaster will prove to be 
a tangible result of such planning. Efforts to secure funding for large-scale hazard mitigation projects 
are supported by the Board of Directors. 

 
 
 

V. MITIGATION STRATEGY 

A. DMA 2000 Requirements 

 

DMA Requirement The hazard mitigation strategy shall include a description of 
§201.6(c)(3)(i): mitigation goals to reduce or avoid long-term vulnerabilities to the 

identified hazards. 
 

DMA Requirement The mitigation strategy shall include a section that identifies and 
§201.6(c)(3)(ii): analyzes a comprehensive range of specific mitigation actions and 

projects being considered to reduce the effects of each hazard, with 
particular emphasis on new and existing buildings and infrastructure. 

 
 
 
 

B.   2013 Mitigation Action Progress Report 
 

2013 Jurisdiction Specific 
 

Mitigation Actions 

Progress Made 

Lake Don Pedro CSD was not include in 
the 2013 MJHMP. 

 

Page 27



 
Other Mitigation Progress Accomplishments 

 
As a result of the extended drought and dangerously low lake water level and community water supply, 
the LDPCSD received grant funding from four different sources beginning in January 2015 for the 
construction of groundwater wells to offset the impending loss of its Lake McClure water supply.  By 
December 2015, three groundwater wells were completed at a cost of $1.8 million and providing adequate 
water supply to meet the winter community water demand.   On January 1, 2016 the State Water 
Resources Control Board mandated the discontinuance of surface water pumping from Lake McClure 
until the water surface elevation reached the 625 foot statutory minimum pool elevation, which occurred 
in March 2016.  The emergency groundwater wells provided 100% of the community water supply needs 
for January and February 2016.     

 
In August 2017, the District completed installation of a second booster pump at the Lake McClure pumping 
facility to provide redundant pumping capacity in low lake conditions caused by drought at a cost of 
approximately $130,000.  In addition, the emergency Lake McClure floating pump system which is 
operated during low lake levels caused by drought, was decommissioned due to structural failure and the 
design of a renovated floating pump system begun in November 2017.  Completion of the renovated 
emergency floating pump system is expected to take 90 days following completion of design in January 
2018.  The estimated cost of emergency pump system renovation is approximately $80,000.   
 
The District has also been experiencing water distribution system leakage and losses totaling up to 30% of 
the total water pumped into the system.  Grant funds and District reserves have been used to implement a 
Water Service Line Replacement Project which began under emergency conditions in 2015, and is planned 
for completion by September 2018, at a total cost of approximately $1.5 million.    

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



 
C. Goals, Objectives and Mitigation Actions 2018 

 
 
 

Goal 1                             Promote understanding and support for hazard mitigation 
 by key stakeholders and the public within Tuolumne 
 County. 

Applies to: All jurisdictions 
 
Objective 1 Educate key stakeholders and the public to increase awareness 
 of hazards and opportunities for mitigating hazards. 

Mitigation Action 1A: Through newsletters, advertisements, speaking engagements 
 and other public contacts, educate the general public and key 
 stakeholders on the issues, responsibilities, and current efforts 
 and successes in the area of disaster preparedness as they 

 
impact each agency. 
 

Mitigation Action 1B: Conduct periodic workshops and promotion of the Emergency 
Notification Systems available to the public to ensure familiarity of 
the public to warning applications. 

 
 
 

Goal 2                             Ensure that future development is protected from natural 
 disasters.  

Applies to: Tuolumne County, City of Sonora, Tuolumne Band of Me- 
 Wuk Indians, and the Tuolumne Utilities District. 

Objective 2 Limit new development in hazardous areas, and as 
permissible, build to standards that will prevent or reduce 
damage. 

 
 

Mitigation Action 2A: Educate the County and City planning staffs, administrative 
 staffs and elected officials on the importance of keeping 
 current on trends and developments in disaster preparedness. 

Mitigation Action 2B: Encourage planning staffs to attend seminars and lectures on 
 naturally occurring hazards so that they may better assist the 
 appropriate governing bodies as they process future 

 

developments. 
 
 

Page 29



 

Mitigation Action 2C: In order to better protect life and property, continue to develop 
 a  more accurate and comprehensive series of countywide 
 
 

GIS geology, fire, and flood maps and data sets.       
   

 
Goal 3                             Build and support local capacity and commitment to 
 minimize the jurisdictions within Tuolumne County’s  
 vulnerability to potential hazards. 

Applies to: All jurisdictions 

Objective 3.1 Improve existing capabilities to manage emergency situations. 

Objective 3.2 Enhance the safety of residents, students and staff within the 

 
community and jurisdictions. 
 

Objective 3.3: Enhance the communications between agencies to support 
emergency response 

 
Mitigation Action 3.1A: In order to ensure that employees are available to assist 

during a major emergency, develop and adopt a Family 
Support Plan for all jurisdictions and County agencies. 

 
Mitigation Action 3.1B: Review and when necessary, update the jurisdiction’s 

Emergency Operations Plans and supporting documents to 
ensure coordination with the County’s new Emergency 
Services’ Plan. 

 
Mitigation Action 3.1C: Assist with Public Health Emergency Preparedness to plan 

and prepare for medical and healthcare impacts which 
would result from all hazards within the County 

 
Mitigation Action 3.2A: Review the initial planning requirements and research the 

development of standard operating procedures which 
would minimize helicopter operations over Sonora 
Elementary School as they utilize the helistop at Sonora 
Regional Medical Center 

 
Mitigation Action 3.2B:  Support the efforts of the Tuolumne Utilities District to 

better protect public health by initiating a Watershed 
Sanitary Survey 

 
Mitigation Action 3.2C:  Assist the County in identifying opportunities for 

additional evacuation routes within single-access areas 
 

Page 30



 
Mitigation Action 3.2D:  TUD will study and seek funding to increase the raw water 

storage or establish a secure conveyance from Lyons 
Reservoir to ensure service for both domestic consumption 
and urban fire protection 

 
Mitigation Action 3.2E:  Make improvements to wastewater systems by replacing or 

relining collection pipes so as to reduce sewer overflows 
and limit inflow and infiltration subsequently reducing the 
public health threat. 

 
Mitigation Action 3.2F:  Develop a program that would, in emergency situations, 

enable water districts and water companies to share water 
resources through interconnections 

 
Mitigation Action 3.2G:  Develop a program to secure water rights for Tuolumne 

County 
 
Mitigation Action 3.2 H: Promote a county-wide sewer connection to reduce septic 

failure impacts and improve water quality. 
 
Mitigation Action 3.2I:   Promote land use recommendations that new developments  

occur adjacent to public water and wastewater facilities. 
 
Mitigation Action 3.3:     Build and maintain communications between County 

agencies, Special Districts, and the Tuolumne Band of Me-
Wuk Indians to assist in the response to emergencies 

 
 

Goal 4                             Minimize the level of damage and losses to people, existing 
    and future critical facilities and infrastructure due to  
    flooding. 

Applies to: Tuolumne County, City of Sonora, Curtis Creek School District, 
     Belleview School District 

Objective 4 Enhance the ability of community assets, particularly critical 
 facilities, located in the 100-year floodplain to handle existing 
 and projected flood levels 

Mitigation Action 4A      Work to improve localized flood prone areas through a 
 combination of vegetation management and storm drain 
 improvements. (i.e. Sonora, Curtis, Sullivan, and Woods 
 Creeks) 

 
 

Page 31



Mitigation Action 4B:     Maintain compliance with the National Flood Insurance 
Program (NFIP) requirements. 

 
 
Mitigation Action 4C:     Through the Development Process Review Team, restrict 

construction of essential service facilities in the 100-year 
flood plain. 

 
Mitigation Action 4D:     In order to better protect life and property, record a notice 

on properties located in flood zones utilizing FIRM maps 
and notify property owners of said action. 

 
Mitigation Action 4E: Continue to work cooperatively with the state and federal 

flood related agencies for funding improvements through 
grant and agency programs. 

 
Mitigation Action 4F:   Seek funding sources for and initiate watershed 

improvement projects for the County. 
 
Mitigation Action 4G:     In cooperation with Jamestown Sanitary District, investigate 

planning and funding for relocation of the wastewater 
treatment facility away from Wood’s Creek and its potential 
flooding capabilities. 

 
Mitigation Action 4H:   Study ways to improve drainage to prevent erosion on the 

steep slopes of the Curtis Creek campus and seek funding 
sources for mitigation. 

 
Mitigation Action 4I:  Study ways to improve drainage to prevent erosion on the 

steep slopes of the Belleview School campus and seek 
funding sources for mitigation. 

 
Mitigation Action 4J: Work with Belleview School to identify and evaluate 

opportunities to create additional evacuation routes within 
the single-access areas in the district. 

 
Goal 5                               Minimize the level of damage and losses to people, existing 

 and future critical facilities and infrastructure due to  
 wildland fires. 
 
Applies to: All Jurisdictions 

Page 32



Objective 5.1 
 
 

Continue the comprehensive approach to reducing the level of damage 
and losses due to wildland fires through vegetation management, code 
enforcement, GIS mapping, and planning process. 

Objective 5.2 Enhance collaboration amongst all fire agencies and stakeholders. 
 

Mitigation Action 5.1A:   In order to assist fire prevention efforts and to better manage large fires 
when they occur, continue to improve GIS mapping and tracking efforts 
by gathering and maintaining relevant GIS data layers and imagery and 
utilizing the best available mapping applications and software. 

 
Mitigation Action 5.1B:   Continue to work with the Hwy 108 Fire Safe Council, Yosemite 

Foothills FireSafe Council, and SWIFT to initiate fuel thinning and 
chipping projects in high priority areas. Collaborate with property owners 
and regulatory agencies in order to utilize prescribed fire on private and 
state owned lands in the county. 

 
 
Mitigation Action 5.1C:   Work with the Hwy 108    Fire Safe Council, Yosemite Foothills Fire Safe 

Council, and  SWIFT to update as needed the Community Wildfire 
Protection Plans for the County so that they will continue to:  
- Assess the fire hazard in the County  
- Prioritize treatment areas  
- Enhance collaboration amongst all fire agencies and stakeholders    
- Streamline environmental review processes 

 
 
Mitigation Action 5.1D: 
 
 

Develop a wildfire evacuation plan which includes sheltering in place at 
Curtis Creek School. 
 

Mitigation Action 5.1E: 
 
 

Work with the Tuolumne Utilities District to improve fire flow, system 
reliability and redundancy, and increased water supply in their 
responsibility areas. 

Mitigation Action 5.1F: 
 

Protect water conveyance system by reducing fuels adjacent   to wooden 
flumes. 

Mitigation Action 5.1G: 
 

Develop a County Fire Agency GIS layer showing fire water draft 
locations. 

 
Mitigation Action 5.1H: 
 
 
 

 
Work with the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District to improve 
system reliability and redundancy, and increased water  supply in their 
responsibility areas. 
 

Page 33



 
 
 

Goal 6                             Minimize the level of damage and losses to people, existing 
 and future critical facilities and infrastructure due to 
 geological events (earthquakes, volcanoes, landslides, and 

 
sinkholes). 
 

Applies to: All jurisdictions 
 
Objective 6 

 
Continue public education efforts so as to better prepare the 

 citizens of Tuolumne County from the effects of a significant 
 geological event 

 
Mitigation Action 6A:     Working with Cal OES, increase participation in earthquake 

preparedness activities such as the annual Great California 
Shake-Out drill 

 
Mitigation Action 6B:      Continue to support the work of utility districts in replacing sewer 

and water lines and portions of the flume that are the most 
vulnerable to an earthquake or landslide 

 
 

 
Mitigation Action 5.1I: 
 
 
 
 

Work with the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District and PG&E 
to improve the reliability of the electrical grid in Don Pedro and provide 
for emergency backup power supply to be used during power outages at 
critical water system facilities. 
 

Mitigation Action 5.2A: 
 
 
 
 

Encourage participation of all Fire Agencies in the monthly Fire Chief 
Association meetings and support, when possible, efforts by the 
Association to improve fire protection and preventions efforts in the 
County. 
 

Mitigation Action 5.2B: 
 
 
 
 

Encourage participation in cooperative automatic and mutual aid 
agreements between Districts, the County and the City of Sonora. 
 
 
 

Goal 7 Limit risk to, and impacts from hazardous materials spills, 
 intentional discharges, illegal disposals, transportation  

 
accidents, or system failures 
 

Applies to: 
 
 
 

All Jurisdictions 
 
 
 

Page 34



 
 

Mitigation Action 7.1A:   Educate community members on the dangers associated 
with household hazardous materials including proper 
storage techniques 

 
Mitigation Action 7.1B:   Continue efforts to educate applicable employees on the 

handling, use, storage and disposal of hazardous materials 
utilized in the workplace 

 
Mitigation Action 7.2A:   In coordination with the Environmental Health Director, 

develop procedures to enhance the response to Hazardous 
Material Incidents 

 
 

 

Objective 7.1 Continue efforts to manage the use, sale, distribution and 
 disposal of hazardous materials in Tuolumne County 

Objective 7.2 Improve emergency response efforts in the control and clean-up 
 of accidental spills and releases 

Goal 8                               Minimize the level of damage and losses to people, existing  
                                          and future infrastructure, and critical facilities due to  
                                          extreme weather 

 
Applies to:  All Jurisdictions 
 
Objective 8.1 Continue the comprehensive approach to reducing the level 

of damage and losses due to extreme weather and drought 
through GIS mapping, planning process, and the removal of 
dead and dying trees. 

 
Mitigation Action 8.1A : 

 
Analyze and remove hazards that threaten public safety due 
to the cascading effects of drought such as dry wells and 
tree mortality 

 
Mitigation Action 8.1B: 

 

 
Encourage water agencies to conduct water supply    
evaluations for each public water system to determine the 
effect of drought on community water supply 

 
Mitigation Action 8.1C: 

 
Work with the Lake Don Pedro Community Services 
District  to improve the availability and reliability of Lake 
McClure pumping capacities at lower water surface 
elevations 

 

Page 35



  
Mitigation Action 8.1D: 

 

 
Work with the Lake Don Pedro Community Services  
District to increase groundwater supply and/or identify 
other alternate water sources to be used when drought 
and related reservoir operational requirements diminish 
the water supply available from Lake McClure  

 

Page 36



 
D.  How Mitigation Goals Address Existing and New Buildings and Infrastructure 

The following tables demonstrate how the proposed mitigation goals take into account both existing and new 
buildings and infrastructure. 

MITIGATION 
GOALS 

  EXISTING BUILDINGS AND INFRASTRUCTURE   

 Electrical and 
Power 

Infrastructure 

Dams and 
Water 

Management 

Communication 
Facilities 

Critical 
Roads & 
Bridges 

Essential 
Service 

Facilities 
(Fire, Law, 
Hospitals 

Agricultural 
Infrastructure 

Public 
Structures 

Goal 1-General 
Mitigation: Promote 
understanding and support 
for hazard mitigation by 
key stakeholders and the 
public within the County 
of Tuolumne. 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

  
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

  
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

Goal 2-General 
Mitigation: Ensure that 
future development is 
protected from natural 
disasters. 

 
 
 

X 

 
 
 

X 

  
 
 

X 

 
 
 

X 

 
 
 

X 

  
 
 

X 

 
 
 

X 

Goal 3-General 
Mitigation: Build and 
support local capacity and 
commitment to minimize 
the County of Tuolumne’s 
vulnerability to potential 
hazards. 

  
 
 

X 

   
 
 

X 

 
 
 

X 

  
 
 

X 

 
 
 

X 

Goal 4-Flood: Minimize 
the level of damage and 
losses to people, existing 
and future critical facilities 
and infrastructure due to 

   flooding. 

 
X 

 
 

X 
 
 
 

 

X X X X X 

Page 37



 
Goal 5-Wildfire: 
Minimize the level of 
damage and losses to 
people, existing and future 
critical facilities and 
infrastructure due to 
wildfire. 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

Goal 6-Earthquake: 
Minimize the level of 
damage and losses to 
people, existing and future 
critical facilities and 
infrastructure due to 
earthquake, landslide and 
sinkholes. 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

Goal 7-Hazardous 
Materials: 
Limit risk to, and impacts 
from hazardous materials 
spills, intentional 
discharges, illegal 
disposals, transportation 
accidents, or system 
failures 

  
 
 
 

X 

   
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 Goal 8- Extreme 
Weather: 
Minimize the level of 
damage and losses to 
people, existing and future 
critical facilities, and 
infrastructure due to 
extreme weather. 

 
 
 
 

X 
 

 
 
 
 

X 
 

  
 
 
 

X 
 

 
 
 
 

X 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

  X 
 

Page 38



 
MITIGATION 

GOALS 

 

NEW PROJECTS/BUILDINGS AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

 Residential 
Subdivisions 

Various 
mixed use 
projects 
(residential 

Ag Clusters 
(residential, open 
space, and Ag 
uses) 

Commercial and 
Industrial 
Projects 

Essential 
Service 
Facilities 

Public 
Structures 

 

Goal 1-General 
Mitigation: Promote 
understanding and 
support for hazard 
mitigation by key 
stakeholders and the 
public within the 
County of Tuolumne. 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

Goal 2-General 
Mitigation: Ensure 
that future 
development is 
protected from natural 
disasters. 

 
 
 

X 

 
 
 

X 

 
 
 

X 

 
 
 

X 

 
 
 

X 

 
 
 

X 

Goal 3-General 
Mitigation: Build 
and support local 
capacity and 
commitment to 
minimize the County 
of Tuolumne’s 
vulnerability to 
potential hazards. 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

Goal 4-Flood: 
Minimize the level 
of damage and 
losses to people, 
existing and future 
critical facilities 
and infrastructure 
due to flooding. 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 

Page 39



 

Goal 5-Wildfire: 
Minimize the level of 
damage and losses to 
people, existing and 
future critical 
facilities and 
infrastructure due to 
wildfire. 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

Goal 6-Earthquake: 
Minimize the level of 
damage and losses to 
people, existing and 
future critical 
facilities and 
infrastructure due to 
earthquake, landslide 
and sinkholes. 

 
 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 
 

X 

Goal 7-Hazardous 
Materials: 
Limit risk to, and 
impacts from 
hazardous materials 
spills, intentional 
discharges, illegal 
disposals, 
transportation 
accidents, or system 
failures 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

Goal 8- Extreme 
Weather: 
Minimize the level of 
damage and losses to 
people, existing and 
future critical facilities, 
and infrastructure due 
to extreme weather. 

 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

   
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 

X 

Page 40



 

VI. MITIGATION ACTION IMPLEMENTATION 

A. DMA 2000 Requirements: 

DMA Requirement The plan maintenance process shall include a section describing the 
§201.6(c)(4)(i): method and schedule of monitoring, evaluating, and updating the 

mitigation plan within a five-year cycle. 
 
 

DMA Requirement The plan shall include a process by which local governments 
§201.6(c)(4)(ii): incorporate the requirements of the mitigation plan into other 

planning mechanisms such as comprehensive or capital improvement 
plans, when appropriate. 

 
 

DMA Requirement The mitigation strategy section shall include an action plan 
§201.6(c)(3)(iii): describing how the actions identified in section (c)(3)(ii) will be 

prioritized, implemented, and administered by the local jurisdiction. 
Prioritization shall include a special emphasis on the extent to which 
benefits are maximized according to a cost benefit review of the 
proposed projects and their associated costs. 

 
 

DMA Requirement For multi-jurisdictional plans, there must be identifiable action items 
§201.6(c)(3)(iv) specific to the jurisdiction requesting FEMA approval or credit of the 

plan. 
 
 
 
 
 

B.    Prioritization of Mitigation Actions 
 

The Mitigation actions were prioritized using a system which is outlined below. This system 
factored  in  the  following  components:  1)  Probability  of  Occurrence  2)  Effectiveness  of 
Mitigation Actions, 3)Practicality of mitigation action for the jurisdiction based on the STAPLE+E 
criteria of Social, Technical, Administrative, Political, Legal, Economic and Environmental 
components. This gave rise to the development of an overall relative risk value that resulted in 
ratings of HIGH, MEDIUM and LOW for each of the mitigation actions. The resultant 
prioritization was presented to criteria key stakeholders and lengthy discussions were held to 
ensure that the results were indeed applicable to the priorities and capabilities of the jurisdictions 
served. 

Page 41



 
 

Sample Mitigation Action Prioritization Worksheet 
Mitigation 
Action 

Probability 
of 
Associated 
Threat 
Occurrence 
Low=1 
Med.=2 
High=3 

Effectiveness 
of Mitigation 
Action 
Minimal=1 
Moderate=2 
High=3 

Practicality 
(based on 
STAPLE+E 
criteria) 
Low=1 
Medium=2 
High=3 

Relative Risk 
(Product of Risk 
Components) 

1.A 3 2 3 18 
 

In assessing and evaluating each strategy, the following factors were considered: 
 

� The benefit justified the cost 
 

� The availability of financial resources 
 

� The availability of staff resources 
 

� Impact on County department functions 
 

� Strategies reflect the goals and objectives 
 
 

C.    Action Plan 
 

Once the MJHMP has received formal adoption by the Board of Supervisors and the various 
governing bodies the following action plan, agreed upon by Hazard Mitigation Planning Group, 
will be used to ensure the Plan is implemented and remains an active and relevant document. 
Actual implementation may be dependent upon funding availability. 

Page 42



 
ACTION PLAN FOR TUOLUMNE COUNTY MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL PLAN 

 
 
MITIGATION ACTION 

 
IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY 

ID DESCRIPTION RESPONSIBLE 
DEPARTMENT 

FUNDING 
SOURCES 

COMPLE- 
TION 
DATE 

PRIORITY 

1.A Educate Public and 
Stakeholders 

OES - lead 
All support 

General 
Funds 

Ongoing Medium 

1.B   Promote Everbridge OES- lead 
All Support 

None 
Required 

Ongoing Low 

2.A Educate Staff OES – lead 
All support 

None 
Required 

Ongoing Medium 

2.B Continuing Education OES –lead 
All support 

General 
Funds 

Ongoing Medium 

2.C Improve GIS 
Capabilities 

County CRA, 
City of Sonora & 
CAL Fire 

General 
Funds 

Ongoing Medium 

3.1A Develop/ Adopt 
Family 
Support Plan 

All agencies 
OES support 

General 
Funds 

12/01/18 Medium 

3.1B Emergency 
Operations Plans 

All agencies 
OES support 

None 
Required 

06/30/18 Medium 

3.1C Medical Preparedness Public Health-Lead 
All Support 

None 
Required 

Ongoing Medium 

3.2A Helicopter 
Operations 

OES None 
Required 

07/01/18 Low 

3.2B Watershed Survey TUD Grant Ongoing Medium 

3.2C Single Access Routes 
 
 

Fire Safe Council 
and Community 
Resources Agency 

Grant and 
General 
Fund 

Ongoing Medium 

3.2D Raw Water Storage TUD Grant Ongoing Medium 

Page 43



 
3.2E Wastewater System 

Improvements 
TUD General 

Fund & 
Grants 

Ongoing High 

3.2F 
 

Water 
Interconnections 

  All water agencies None 
Required 

Ongoing Medium 

3.2G Water Rights All water 
agencies 

Grants & 
General 
Funds 

Ongoing Medium 

3.2H Promote Sewer 
Connection 

Water Agencies 
with support of all 
agencies 

None 
Required 

Ongoing Low 

3.2I Promote Development 
adjacent water 
facilities 

Water Agencies 
with support of all 
agencies 

None 
Required 

Ongoing Low 

3.3 Maintain 
Communications 

All agencies None 
Required 

Ongoing Medium 

4.A Creek/Storm Drain 
Management 

County CRA and 
City of Sonora 

General  
Fund 

Fall of each 
year 

Low 

4.B NFIP Requirements County CRA and 
City of Sonora 

General 
Fund 

Ongoing Medium 

4.C Development Review County CRA and 
City of Sonora 

General 
Fund 

Ongoing Medium 

4.D Notice Property 
Owners 

County CRA and 
City of Sonora 

General 
Fund 

09/01/19 Medium 

4.E Storm Drain 
Improvements 

County CRA and 
City of Sonora 

Grants Ongoing Medium 

4.F County Watershed 
Projects 

County CRA Grants Ongoing Medium 

4.G Jamestown Water 
Treatment Plant 
Relocation 

Jamestown 
Sanitary District 
with County OES 
& CRA support 

Grants Ongoing Medium 

4.H Drainage Curtis Creek 
School District 

Grants Ongoing Medium 

4.I Drainage Belleview School 
District 

Grants Ongoing Medium 

Page 44



5.1A Improve GIS 
Mapping and 
Tracking 

CAL Fire-County 
Fire 

General 
Fund 

Ongoing Medium 

5.1B Fuel Thinning and 
Chipping Projects 

All fire agencies Grants Ongoing High 

5.1C Community Wildfire 
Protection Plan 
Update 

CAL Fire-County 
Fire 

General 
Fund 

08/01/14 Medium 
 
 
 
 

5.1D Improve Water 
Supply/ Storage at 
Curtis Creek School 

Curtis Creek 
School District 

Grants 11/01/18 High 

5.1E Evacuation Plans for 
Curtis Creek 

District 
Superintendent 
with fire agencies 
supporting 

None 
Required 

09/01/19 High 

5.1F Water Supply/Fire 
Flow 

TUD, with 
fire agencies 
supporting 

General 
Funds and 
Grants 

Ongoing High 

5.1G Protect Flumes TUD, with fire 
agencies 
supporting 

General 
Funds and 
Grants 

Ongoing Medium 

5.1H County Fire GIS  
Layer 

County GIS- Lead 
OES- Support 

General 
Funds 

Ongoing 
 

Low 

5.1I Increase Water Supply 
for Lake Don Pedro 
CSD 

Lake Don Pedro 
CSD- Lead 
OES-Support 

General 
Funds and 
Grants 

Ongoing Medium 

5.1J Increase Alternate 
Power Source for Lake 
Don Pedro 

Lake Don Pedro 
CSD- Lead 
OES-Support 

General 
Funds and 
Grants 

Ongoing Medium 

5.2A Fire Chiefs 
Association 

All fire agencies None 
Required 

Ongoing Medium 

Page 45



5.2B Mutual/Auto Aid All fire agencies None 
Required 

Ongoing Medium 

6.A Earthquake 
Preparedness 
Exercises 

OES – lead 
All support 

None 
Required 

Fall of Each 
Year 

Medium 

6.B Replace Vulnerable 
Water/Sewer Lines 

TUD General 
Fund 

Ongoing Medium 

7.1A Educate Community 
on Hazardous 
Materials 

OES – lead 
All support 

None 
Required 

Ongoing Medium 

7.1B Educate Staff on 
Hazardous Materials 

OES – lead 
All support 

None 
Required 

Ongoing Medium 

7.2A Improve Response 
Capabilities 

Environmental 
Health– lead 
fire agencies 
support 

None 
Required 

Ongoing Medium 

8.1A Removal of safety 
hazards caused by dry 
wells and Tree 
Mortality 

All Agencies 
 
 

Grant Ongoing High 
 

8.1B 
 

Water Supply 
Evaluation at Lake 
McClure 

Lake Don Pedro 
CSD- Lead 
OES Support 

Grant and 
General Fund 

Ongoing Medium 

8.1C Improve Pumping 
Capacity at Lake 
McClure 

Lake Don Pedro 
CSD- Lead 
OES Support 

Grant and 
General Fund 

Ongoing High 

8.1D Alternate Water 
Sources to Lake 
McClure 

Lake Don Pedro 
CSD- Lead 
OES Support 

Grant and 
General Fund 

Ongoing Medium 

 

 
 

Page 46



D.    Implementation Through Existing Plans and Programs 
Tuolumne County currently uses comprehensive land use planning, capital improvements 
planning, and building codes to guide and control development within the County. This MJHMP 
will be provided to those responsible for the County’s General Plan development mechanisms to 
ensure that consistency is maintained. The same holds true whenever substantive changes are 
made. 

 
Mitigation Actions have been assigned to specific jurisdictions. These individual actions will 
fall under the general administrative oversight of the local governing body. Should technical 
expertise not be available in these agencies, the County Office of Emergency Services is 
committed to, when possible, coordinating the resources of the County to assist with 
implementation of the mitigation actions. 

 
The general administrative oversight of this MJHMP rests with the Tuolumne County Office of 
Emergency Services. 

 

E.   Continued Public Involvement 
Tuolumne County and the District understand the importance of involving the public in the 
ongoing Hazard Mitigation Plan review and updating process.  Resultantly, the following 
actions will be taken: 

 
� A copy of the MJHMP will be posted on the County and LDPCSD websites 
� Hard copies of the Plan will be available at the County Office of Emergency Services, 

LDPCSD office and the County Library 
 

F.   Plan Monitoring, Evaluating and Updating 
 

DMA Requirement   A local jurisdiction must review and revise its plan to reflect changes in 
§201.6(d)(3):             development, progress in local mitigation efforts, and changes in 

priorities, and resubmit if for approval within 5 years in order to continue to 
be eligible for mitigation project grant funding. 

 
 

In order to continue to be an effective representation of each jurisdiction’s overall strategy 
for  reducing  its  risks  from  natural  hazards,  the  mitigation  plan  must  reflect  current 
conditions. Monitoring and evaluating the plan will occur annually to make certain that the 
goals and objectives for the County and participating jurisdictions are current and mitigation 
activities are being carried out. 

 
To ensure that regular review and update of this Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan 
takes place, the County Office of Emergency Services will communicate with the MJHMP 
Planning Group members annually to see if their plan components are up-to-date and meet 
current realities. 

Page 47



 
 

The MJHMP Planning Group will review each goal and objective to evaluate its: 
 

� Relevance to current and evolving situations in Tuolumne County 
 

� Consistency with changes in local, state and federal policy 
 
 

The planning group will review the risk assessment component of the plan to ascertain if the 
information needs to be updated or modified.  Each jurisdiction will report on: 

 
� Current status of their mitigation actions 

 

� How coordination efforts are proceeding 
 

� Implementation processes that worked well 
 

� Any difficulties encountered 
 

� Any strategies in need of revision 
 

 
 

If the plan review leads the Hazard Mitigation Planning Group to determine that modifications 
are necessary, then the County or the applicable jurisdiction can initiate a plan amendment. 

Page 48



 

Acronyms 
 

Acronym Definition 
CGS California Geological Survey 
Cal EPA California Environmental Protection Agency 

 

Caltrans California Department of Transportation 
 

CAL Fire                    California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection 
CDF                            California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection 
CDHS                         California Department of Health Services 
CFR Code of Federal Regulations 

 

CGS California Geological Survey 
 

CISN California Integrated Seismic Network 
CSSC California Seismic Safety Commission 
DFG State Department of Fish and Game 
DHS Department of Homeland Security 
DWR Department of Water Resources 
FEMA Federal Emergency Management Agency 

 

FIRM Flood Insurance Rate Map 
FMA Flood Mitigation Assistance 
FMP Floodplain Management Plan 
FRAP Fire and Resource Assessment Program 
GIS Geographic Information System 
HMGP Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 
LHMP Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 
NFIP National Flood Insurance Program 
NOAA National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration 

 

NPS National Park Services 
OES Governor’s Office of Emergency Services 
SEMS Standardized Emergency Management System 
SFHA Special Flood Hazard Area 
USDA U.S. Department of Agriculture 

 

USGS U.S. Geological Survey 

Page 49



 
 
 
 

Page 50



LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-19 

ADOPTION OF AN UPDATED MULTI-JURISDICTION LOCAL HAZARD 
MITIGATION PLAN 

WHEREAS, the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District’s (District) 
recognizes that natural hazards threaten the well-being of people and property within the 
Lake Don Pedro community and that the risk of such threats can be reduced by 
undertaking hazard mitigation planning and pre-disaster mitigation projects; and  

WHEREAS, the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (Disaster Act) was put in place to 
reduce the risks of natural hazards and the costs of post-disaster assistance by 
establishing a national program for pre-disaster mitigation, including a Hazard Mitigation 
Grant Program (HGMP) that helps fund pre-disaster mitigation projects; and 

WHEREAS, the Disaster Act requires local governments to develop and submit 
local mitigation plans in order to qualify for the HGMP funds; and 

WHEREAS, the other Districts in Tuolumne County participated in hazard 
mitigation planning and adopted local Hazard Mitigation Plans in 2012, which were 
included as attachments to the 2013 Tuolumne County (County) Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard 
Mitigation Plan (2013 Plan); and 

WHEREAS, the District, in conjunction with County and other local agencies, have 
participated in a mitigation planning process to update the 2013 Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the attached District Hazard Mitigation Plan includes the results from 
said process that will be incorporated as an annex to the updated County Multi-
Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan upon adoption by the District Board. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the District Board of Directors that: 

1. The District accepts the updated Tuolumne County Multi-Jurisdiction
Hazard Mitigation Plan as an official plan and adopts the attached District
Hazard Mitigation Plan to be attached as an annex to said County Plan.

2. The District shall forward this Resolution and District Hazard Mitigation Plan
to the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services and the Federal
Emergency Management Agency to enable final approval of the Tuolumne
County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan.

PASSED AND ADOPTED, by the Board of Directors of Lake Don Pedro 
Community Services District on December 14, 2017 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ ____________________________  
Danny Johnson, Board President Syndie Marchesiello, Board Secretary 

Page 51



Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Special Meeting of December 14, 2017 

AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

Item 5b.  Consideration of approval calling for applications for appointment of a director, in lieu of calling a special 
election, to replace Director James Sult who resigned effective January 1, 2018 due to the relocation of his primary 
residence outside of the District boundaries. 

Recommended Motion 
Direct staff to prepare and post the Notice for the appointment of a replacement Director. 

Background 

The California Elections Code governs the District’s elections. Director Jim Sult is unable to continue his duties 
as Director due to a relocation of residence and has resigned his position in writing; attached. The code requires 
that the Board either appoint a new Board member, allow the County Board of Supervisors to appoint a new Board 
member (which they are allowed to do after 60 days) or to call for a special election which would occur in both 
Tuolumne and Mariposa Counties.  If the Board chooses to call a special election, the entire cost of the election is the 
responsibility of the District, in both counties.   

The appointment of a new Board member is the best and most economical method to fill the Board vacancy.  The best 
processes include an application process and simple public interview where all candidates are asked the same questions, 
prepared and conducted by the District Board.  The code requires that a notice of vacancy be posted and published for a 
minimum of 14 days in advance of the appointment of the new director.   

Page 52

syndie
Highlight

syndie
Highlight



Page 53



Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Special Meeting of December 14, 2017 

AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

5. Discussion and Action Items
c. Conduct the annual Board reorganization to include the appointment of the office of President 
and Vice-President 

Recommended Motion 
Staff recommends a  motion for the following: 
I move to appoint director __________________ to the office of Board President, and 
_____________________-to the office of Board Vice President. 

Background  
It is customary and the policy of the Board that in December of each year, the board conduct an 
annual organizational meeting in which the appointment of Board President and Vice President is 
made.  The District policy describing the role of Board President and its policy on Board meeting, 
including the process and limitations of Board officers, is included with this agenda item.  The Board 
is not required to change officers.  

The Board is not bound by law to follow its own existing protocol or policy with regard to the 
appointment of officers, and there is also no legal guidance or industry standard on how officer 
appointments are made.  If the Board is to take action which is counter to its policy in this matter, as 
a best practice the member making the motion should also state why the policy should not be 
applicable in consideration of their recommended action, and/or what changes to policy should be 
considered in the future by the Board. 

Government Code 61043 simply states: 

(a) Within 45 days after the effective date of the formation of a district, the board of directors shall
meet and elect its officers.  Thereafter, within 45 days after each general district or unopposed
election, the board of directors shall meet and elect the officers of the board of directors.  A
board of directors may elect the officers of the board of directors annually.

(b) The officers of a board of directors are a president and a vice president.  The president shall
preside over meetings of the board of directors and the vice president shall serve in the
president's absence or inability to serve.

(c) A board of directors may create additional offices and elect members to those offices,
provided that no member of a board of directors shall hold more than one office.

Page 54



POLICY TITLE: Board Meetings 
POLICY NUMBER: 5010 

5010.1 Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held on the third (3rd) Monday of each calendar 

month at 1:00 pm in the Lake Don Pedro CSD Board Room, located at 9751 Merced Falls Road, La Grange, 

CA. Should the regular meeting fall on an observed Holiday, as defined by the District in Policy #2080, the 

Regular Meeting will be held on the next business day at 1:00 p.m.    

5010.2 Special meetings (non-emergency) of the Board of Directors may be called by the Board President or 3 

directors. 

5010.2.1 All Directors, the General Manager, the District Secretary and any other appropriate District 

consultants shall be notified of the special Board meeting and the purpose or purposes for which it is 

called.  Said notification shall be in writing, delivered to them at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

5010.2.2 Newspapers of general circulation in the District, radio stations and television stations, 

organizations, and property owners who have requested notice of special meetings in accordance with 

the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §54950 through §54926) shall be notified by a 

mailing unless the special meeting is called less than one week in advance, in which case notice, 

including business to be transacted, will be given by telephone, fax or e-mail during business hours as 

soon after the meeting is scheduled as practicable. 

5010.2.3 An agenda shall be prepared as specified for regular Board meetings in Policy #5020 and 

shall be delivered with the notice of the special meeting to those specified above. 

5010.2.4 Only those items of business listed in the call for the special meeting shall be considered by 

the Board at any special meeting. 

5010.3 Special Meetings (emergency).  In the event of an emergency situation involving matters upon which 

prompt action is necessary due to the disruption or threatened disruption of public facilities, the Board of Directors 

may hold an emergency special meeting without complying with the 24-hour notice required in 5010.21, above.  

An emergency situation means a crippling disaster which severely impairs public health, safety, or both, as 

determined by the General Manager, Board President or Vice President in the President’s absence. 

5010.3.1 Newspapers of general circulation in the District, radio stations and television stations 

which have requested notice of special meetings in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 

Government Code §54950 through §54926) shall be notified by at least one hour prior to the 

emergency special meeting.  In the event that telephone services are not functioning, the notice 

requirement of one hour is waived, but the General Manager, or his/her designee, shall notify such 

LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

Policy and Procedures Manual 

Page 55



newspapers, radio stations, or television stations of the fact of the holding of the emergency special 

meeting, and of any action taken by the Board, as soon after the meeting as possible. 

5010.3.2 No closed session may be held during an emergency special meeting, and all other rules 

governing special meetings shall be observed with the exception of the 24-hour notice.  The minutes of 

the emergency special meeting, a list of persons the General Manager or designee notified or 

attempted to notify, a copy of the roll call vote(s), and any actions taken at such meeting shall be 

posted for a minimum of ten days in the District office as soon after the meeting as possible. 

5010.4 Adjourned Meetings.  A majority vote by the Board of Directors may terminate any Board meeting at 

any place in the agenda to any time and place specified in the order of adjournment, except that if no or less than 

a quorum of Directors are present at any regular or adjourned regular meeting, the General Manager may 

declare the meeting adjourned to a stated time and place, and he/she shall cause a written notice of adjournment 

to be given to those specified in 5010.2.2 above. 

5010.5 Annual Organizational Meeting.  The Board of Directors shall include an annual organizational meeting 

at its regular meeting in December.  At this meeting, the Board will elect a President, Vice President.  The  

President’s position shall be limited to 2 (two) consecutive one year terms. Standing Committees shall be 

appointed from among its members to serve during the coming calendar year.  

5010.6 The General Manager shall determine the order in which agenda items shall be considered for 

discussion and/or action by the Board. 

5010.7 The President and the General Manager shall insure that appropriate information is available for the 

audience at meetings of the Board of Directors, and that physical facilities for said meetings are functional and 

appropriate. 

Page 56



POLICY TITLE: Board President 

POLICY NUMBER: 4040 

4040.1 The President of the Board of Directors shall serve as chairperson at all Board meetings. 
He/she shall have the same rights as the other members of the Board in voting, introducing 
motions, resolutions and ordinances, and any discussion of questions that follow said actions. 

4040.2 In the absence of the President, the Vice President of the Board of Directors shall serve as 
chairperson over all meetings of the Board.  If the President and Vice President of the Board are 
both absent, the remaining members present shall select one of themselves to act as chairperson 
of the meeting. 

LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

Policy and Procedures Manual 

Page 57


	2017-12-14 Special Meeting Agenda
	Lake Don Pedro Community Services District
	9751 Merced Falls Rd., La Grange, CA 95329

	9751 Merced Falls Road
	AGENDA
	2. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	3. PRESENTATION ONLY:
	4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA: The following items may all be approved in one motion or considered separately as determined appropriate by the President
	5. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS:
	6. CLOSED SESSION: Public Comment will be taken on the item(s) below prior to the Board convening the Closed Session.  Following Closed Session, the Board will reconvene the open session and publicly report any action taken.
	7. ADJOURNMENT:


	GM Report Rebates Paid Through November 14 2017
	NOVEMBER 2017

	Item 3b, GM Report USDA Reimbursement Request Invoice List
	Line Item List

	Item 4, Consent Agenda Staff Report
	Item 4b, 2017-11-20 Reg Bd Mtg Minutes
	9751 Merced Falls Road, La Grange CA 95329
	2. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	3. PRESENTATION ONLY:
	5. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS
	6. CLOSED SESSION
	7. ADJOURNMENT:  5:08 p.m.


	Item 5a, Annex V- Lake Don Pedro CSD
	Item 5a, Hazard Mitigation Plan Approval Resolution
	Item 5b, Appointment for Director position
	5d, Replacement Board member staff report
	AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA


	Item 5b, Director Sult Board Resignation
	Item 5c, Board Officers Staff Report
	GM Report Rebates Paid Through November 14 2017.pdf
	NOVEMBER 2017







Regular Meeting of December 15, 2014

Page 2 of 2





[bookmark: _GoBack]Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

9751 Merced Falls Road

Monday

December 15, 2014 at 1:00 p.m.

Mission Statement:  The LDPCSD is dedicated to providing potable water that either meets or exceeds all state and federal standards in sufficient quantities to meet the needs of our customers utilizing the most cost effective methods possible while still maintaining a sound financial plan now and for the future.  



AGENDA



1.   CALL TO ORDER: Presiding Officer: Establish Quorum, Pledge of Allegiance: 



2.   PUBLIC COMMENT § 54954.3: 

Any person may address the Board at this time on any matter within the jurisdiction of the Board that is NOT ON THE AGENDA.  A maximum of three minutes is allowed each person and a maximum of 20 minutes per topic. Any person wishing to address the Board on an item ON THE AGENDA will be given the opportunity at that time.  Speakers are encouraged to consult District Management or Directors prior to agenda preparation regarding any District matters, as no action will be taken on non-agenda issues.  



3.   PRESENTATION ONLY: 



	a.	Presiding Officer’s Report



	b. 	Interim Manager’s Report: Peter J. Kampa

		

	c. 	Chief Plant Operator’s Report: R. Gilgo



4.   APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA: The following items may all be approved in one motion or considered separately as determined appropriate by the President



a. Read and file the Treasurer’s Report

b. Approval to pay PG&E for power bills

c. Approval to pay Attorney Bill

d. Approval to pay Brentag

e. Approval to pay Grainger

f. Approve November 11, 2014 Regular Board Meeting Minutes, December 3, 2014 Special Meeting	



5.   DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS: 



a. Review and acceptance of the 2013 / 14 fiscal year audit presented by Blomberg & Griffin Accounting Corporation



b. Update on the current Water Supply Warning, water system leak reductions, actions to secure additional water supply and improve water supply reliability and authorization to proceed with the purchase of equipment, supplies and services related to securing emergency water supply.  



c. Conduct the annual Board reorganization to include the appointment of the office of President and Vice-President. 



d. Approval of a resolution calling for applications for appointment of a director, in lieu of calling a special election, to replace a candidate elected in the 2014 election that resigned prior to assuming office due to inability to fulfill their position on the Board.  



e. Discussion regarding the development of District management Goals and Objectives. 

f. Approval of interim amendments to the District Water Rules and Regulations regarding disconnection and reconnection to the District water system and related fees, fees to be charged during service discontinuance and the applicability reconnection fees after service lock off.  

g. Resolution adopting Ordinance 2014-01, an ordinance adopting the provisions of the Uniform Construction Cost Accounting Act pursuant to the California Public Contract Code. 

h. Resolution approving a standard form of agreement to be used for all district construction and consulting services projects.

6.   DIRECTORS COMMENTS:

Any Director may address the Board on any item of interest that is within the subject matter and       jurisdiction of the District. Generally no discussion or comment by other Board members should be expected on non-agenda items, except to properly place the matter on a future agenda for review, discussion or action as appropriate. 



         	7.   ADJOURNMENT:







In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the Secretary of the Board. (209) 852-2331

Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the District after distribution of the packet are available for public inspection in the District’s office at 9751 Merced Falls RD, during normal business hours. 








Regular Meeting of December 15, 2014

Page 2 of 2





[bookmark: _GoBack]Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

9751 Merced Falls Road

Monday

December 15, 2014 at 1:00 p.m.

Mission Statement:  The LDPCSD is dedicated to providing potable water that either meets or exceeds all state and federal standards in sufficient quantities to meet the needs of our customers utilizing the most cost effective methods possible while still maintaining a sound financial plan now and for the future.  



AGENDA



1.   CALL TO ORDER: Presiding Officer: Establish Quorum, Pledge of Allegiance: 



2.   PUBLIC COMMENT § 54954.3: 

Any person may address the Board at this time on any matter within the jurisdiction of the Board that is NOT ON THE AGENDA.  A maximum of three minutes is allowed each person and a maximum of 20 minutes per topic. Any person wishing to address the Board on an item ON THE AGENDA will be given the opportunity at that time.  Speakers are encouraged to consult District Management or Directors prior to agenda preparation regarding any District matters, as no action will be taken on non-agenda issues.  



3.   PRESENTATION ONLY: 



	a.	Presiding Officer’s Report



	b. 	Interim Manager’s Report: Peter J. Kampa

		

	c. 	Chief Plant Operator’s Report: R. Gilgo



4.   APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA: The following items may all be approved in one motion or considered separately as determined appropriate by the President



a. Read and file the Treasurer’s Report

b. Approval to pay PG&E for power bills

c. Approval to pay Attorney Bill

d. Approval to pay Brentag

e. Approval to pay Grainger

f. Approve November 11, 2014 Regular Board Meeting Minutes, December 3, 2014 Special Meeting	



5.   DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS: 



a. Review and acceptance of the 2013 / 14 fiscal year audit presented by Blomberg & Griffin Accounting Corporation



b. Update on the current Water Supply Warning, water system leak reductions, actions to secure additional water supply and improve water supply reliability and authorization to proceed with the purchase of equipment, supplies and services related to securing emergency water supply.  



c. Conduct the annual Board reorganization to include the appointment of the office of President and Vice-President. 



d. Approval of a resolution calling for applications for appointment of a director, in lieu of calling a special election, to replace a candidate elected in the 2014 election that resigned prior to assuming office due to inability to fulfill their position on the Board.  



e. Discussion regarding the development of District management Goals and Objectives. 

f. Approval of interim amendments to the District Water Rules and Regulations regarding disconnection and reconnection to the District water system and related fees, fees to be charged during service discontinuance and the applicability reconnection fees after service lock off.  

g. Resolution adopting Ordinance 2014-01, an ordinance adopting the provisions of the Uniform Construction Cost Accounting Act pursuant to the California Public Contract Code. 

h. Resolution approving a standard form of agreement to be used for all district construction and consulting services projects.

6.   DIRECTORS COMMENTS:

Any Director may address the Board on any item of interest that is within the subject matter and       jurisdiction of the District. Generally no discussion or comment by other Board members should be expected on non-agenda items, except to properly place the matter on a future agenda for review, discussion or action as appropriate. 



         	7.   ADJOURNMENT:







In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the Secretary of the Board. (209) 852-2331

Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the District after distribution of the packet are available for public inspection in the District’s office at 9751 Merced Falls RD, during normal business hours. 






2





 

[image: LDPCSD]General Manager’s Report

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District



     



December 12, 2014



[bookmark: _GoBack]As of November 5, 2014, the surface water elevation at Lake McClure was 595 Above Sea Level (ASL), which leaves approximately 90 days of water supply remaining. Much of this month has been spent preparing to implement water conservation and working with the state to secure funding assistance to bolster our water supply.   



The items presented on this agenda consumed the remainder of the month’s activities.  



Again, we feel that the key to a knowledgeable community is communication. If you ever have any questions or concerns or you wish to leave feedback, please feel free to contact us at 209-852-2331.  If you notice a leak after hours, please call our emergency number at 209-572-8002. We are here to serve.

                      

Sincerely,





________________________

Peter J. Kampa

General Manager

1 | Page







4



image1.png






RESOLUTION NO. 2014-10



A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

OF THE LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT ADOPTING REVISIONS TO ORDINANCE 2005-1  

EXHIBIT A SCHEDULE OF RATES AND CHARGES





WHEREAS, The District has adopted Ordinance 2005-1 establishing the rules and regulations relating to water service provided by the District; and



WHEREAS, Ordinance 2005-1 Exhibit A Schedule of Rates and Charges has been adopted and amended on a regular basis to ensure that all fees, charges, rates and other exactions levied by the District are in conformance with industry standards, laws, current practices and the needs of the customers of the District; and



WHEREAS, certain language currently contained in Exhibit A is in need of revision for the reasons stated above.



NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE DISTRICT DOES HEREBY AMEND ORDINANCE 2015-1 EXHIBIT A SCHEDULE OF RATES AND CHARGES AS FOLLOWS:



E.  RECONNECTION FEE:  (To have a meter reconnected that has been removed).  To have a meter reconnected a non-refundable fee of $50.00 plus the credit deposit must be made within 90 days.  After 90 days a the meter will be removed however the applicable monthly rates will continue to accure on the account.  Prior to meter reinstallation, the account shall be paid current including the above fees.customer will be put on standby and a new capital facilities improvement fee and a meter set fee will be charged.  Standby will be applied from date of meter being removed.



METER REMOVAL AT CUSTOMER REQUEST:	The District will remove a meter and discontinue service at the request of the property owner in the event that no habitable structure exists on the property and the Owner agrees to discontinue service.  Upon service discontinuance, monthly service fees shall be stopped and the account will be placed on Standby, with Availability Fees charged.  



TEMPORARY HARDSHIP: In situations where a structure on the property is desgtroyed  by fire or other natural event, the monthly service fees may be waived by the General Manager for a period of up to six months.  The meter will not be removed during this period of reconstruction and monthly fees will apply following the waiver period.  

 









10Page  I  of 5 pages

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District Resolution No. 2014-10









WHEREAS, 

[bookmark: _GoBack]

WHEREFORE, this Resolution is passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District on December 15, 2014, by the following vote:



AYES:	



NOES:



ABSENT:	



ABSTAIN:









ATTEST:







CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY



I, Syndic Marchesiello, the duly appointed and acting Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District, do hereby declare that the foregoing Resolution was duly passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Communi ty Services District, duly called and held at the District office at 9751 Merced Falls Road, La Grange, CA 95239, on February 18, 2014.



DATED: February 18, 2014.



























Page 2 of 5 pages

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District                            Resolution No. 201 4-10 




Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

Regular Meeting of December 15, 2014



AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA





5a.  Review and acceptance of the 2013 / 14 fiscal year audit presented by Blomberg & Griffin Accounting Corporation



Background

The District is required by law to hire a qualified Certified Public Accountant to conduct an audit of its financial statements annually.  The purpose of the audit is to inform the Board as to whether the financial statements prepared by District management are properly prepared, in compliance with laws and accounting standards.  



This is the first year of our engagement with Blomberg & Griffin Accounting Corporation, and in many cases there is a learning curve with a new auditor.  I can tell you that our Board Secretary/Office Manager/Property Specialist Syndie Marchesiello did such a thorough and accurate job in preparing the financial information, in conjunction with our contract financial firm Warmerdan, that this audit firm sat down for two days and had nearly zero requests for additional information.  Thanks go to Syndie for her excellent effort in keeping the District financial affairs in order.  



Contained herein is the draft audited financial statements for your review.  Also included in the documentation is a draft Management Discussion and Analysis; which is attached and part of the audit and intended to be a snapshot view of the good work the District is doing financially; in providing its services. 



If there were any weaknesses in the District’s financial policies or practices, the audit is designed to identify and make recommendations for their remedy.  The audit reveals that no material weaknesses were found in the District practices.  The audit further reveals that the financial position of the District is increasing positively, in increased assets and investments.  This does not mean that the District infrastructure and services are optimally healthy, but does indicate that expenditures are continually within budget, and budgets have in recent history covered the desired level of operation.  



The audit does not contain recommendations for improvement, nor are there and findings stating that policies or procedures are inconsistent with standards. Basically, we have a clean audit and it is recommended that the Board accept the audit as presented.    



Recommended Motion

[bookmark: _GoBack]I move to accept the annual audit as presented by Blomberg & Griffin Accounting Corporation.    




Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

Regular Meeting of December 15, 2014



AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA



5b.  Update on the current Water Supply Warning, water system leak reductions, actions to secure additional water supply and improve water supply reliability and authorization to proceed with the purchase of equipment, supplies and services related to securing emergency water supply.

Background

Much effort has occurred since our public hearing of December 3, 2014 in updating the District website, designing forms and processes, answering customer questions, preparing flyers and performing an overhaul of our water conservation program.  We have secured many additional water conservation buckets (as distributed during the hearing) and are preparing to distribute a mailed notice to all customers detailing the mandatory water conservation requirements.  



District management has been meeting regularly with both Tuolumne and Mariposa County emergency management staff, the Tuolumne County Administrator and State Water Board staff in an attempt to secure emergency drought funding for necessary water supply improvement projects, as discussed at the last Board meeting.  The attached project proposal was submitted to the State on December 11 and discussed in a meeting with the State on December 12.  The state is seeking to maximize the grant funding available to our District immediately for Phase 1 and Phase 2 contained in the attached proposal.  The remaining phases of work will be proposed for funding through the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) which, depending on the median household income and level of water rates in our community, is awarded in the form or grants, grant and loan combinations, low subsidized interest rates, and zero interest rate loans.  



Our water supply emergency is currently the highest priority in the region for which to secure funding.  We should know very soon if we are recommended for the emergency drought funding, which is 100% grant up to $500,000 and funding is currently available.  It is also possible that we may be reimbursed for the recent expenses associated with the barge purchase, cable, etc related to the drought emergency.  I will be submitting an application for the SRF under the direction of the State and the Board will be asked to execute a contract at a future time, at which we will know whether we are receiving grants or grants and loans.   For the interim, we need to continue progress on purchasing the necessary pipe sections and related supplies, potentially a new electrical cable and a second transfer pump to be installed at the intake site.  In addition, we need to be contracting for the completion of the planning and design of the groundwater wells as detailed in Phases 2 and 3 of the Proposal.      



Staff seeks direction and approval to continue expenditures in accordance with the attached project proposal, with the intention of receiving state funding assistance.  The actual contracting for well drilling and installation will occur in a future Board action approving construction and funding contracts.   Major engineering design efforts will also be detailed separately in related agreements which must be approved by the Board before proceeding.  At this time, staff seeks authorization for related expenditures and funding commitments of up to $150,000.  



Recommended Motion

[bookmark: _GoBack]I move to authorize the General Manager to proceed with water supply emergency planning and design activities and other purchases up to a maximum of $150,000 without further authorization by the Board.      




Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

Regular Meeting of December 15, 2014



AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA



5c.  Conduct the annual Board reorganization to include the appointment of the office of President and Vice-President.



Background

Pursuant to the California Government Code, the District Board is to appoint among itself a President, to preside over its meetings and a Vice President to serve in the absence of the President.  The law does not prescribe a specific method, term or procedure to be used by the4 Board in appointment of its officers.  Current Board policy provides for a term of one year for the President and Vice President; however if the Board desires to allow longer terms, just a simple board action is required to make such a change.  



In reality and under law, the Board President is assigned the responsibility to sign documents on behalf of the District, to ensure the meeting agendas contain appropriate items of District business, and to lead the meeting in an effort to move the Board through action items to a decision.  There are no specific requirements for the Board President with regard to experience or qualifications; although the best Board Presidents have the ability to build consensus among the Board and public and to work effectively in a teamwork environment.   



The officer appointment process involves a motion for appointment of an individual or slate (president and vice president), a second and vote.  In the event that the motion to appoint involves the current Board President, the motion should recommend the waiver of the current board officer term policy for the year or a specified period.   



Recommended Motion

[bookmark: _GoBack]I move to appoint Director ____________________ as President and Director _____________________  as vice president.  Alternate:  I move to appoint ______________________as President/Vice President.    




Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

Regular Meeting of December 15, 2014



AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA



5d.  Approval of a resolution calling for applications for appointment of a director, in lieu of calling a special election, to replace a candidate elected in the 2014 election that resigned prior to assuming office due to inability to fulfill his position on the Board.



Background

The California Elections Code governs the District’s elections. One of the recently elected Directors, Kirk Perry, was unable to assume his duties as Director and has resigned his position in writing. The code requires that the Board either appoint a new Board member, allow the County Board of Supervisors to appoint a new Board member (which they are allowed to do after 60 days) or to call for a special election which would occur in both Tuolumne and Mariposa Counties.  If the Board chooses to call a special election, the entire cost of the election is the responsibility of the District, in both counties.  



In my experience, the appointment of a new Board member, chosen through an inclusive process is the best and most economical method to fill the Board vacancy.  The best processes include an application process and simple public interview where all candidates are asked the same questions, prepared and conducted by the District Board.  The code requires that a notice of vacancy be posted and published for a minimum of 14 days in advance of the appointment of the new director.  



Recommended Motion

[bookmark: _GoBack]Direct staff to arrange for the appointment of a replacement Director. 


Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

Regular Meeting of December 15, 2014



AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA



5f.  Approval of interim amendments to the District Water Rules and Regulations regarding disconnection and reconnection to the District water system and related fees, fees to be charged during service discontinuance and the applicability reconnection fees after service lock off.



Background

The District is allowed by the California Government Code and for many issues required by the California Health and Safety Code, Government Code, State Constitution and California Code of Regulations to promulgate and adopt certain rules and regulations related to the provision of water service.  The District has adopted and routinely amended such regulations in the past. The regulations were initially adopted as an Ordinance (District law) and then has typically been amended by Resolution over the years.  There have been occasion when a single section of the Ordinance has been amended by Board Motion, which can make tracking amendments over time difficult.  



The 2005 amendments to Ordinance 2005-1 contained a variety of modified fees and charges, including the Capital Facilities Fee which is charged when a new connection is made to the existing system to cover the cost of capacity in the water system, and the Reconnection Fee that is charged typically when a customer does not pay their bill for an extended period of time; and the fee is intended to recover the cost of operating the water system in a “ready to serve” condition while the customer was not paying service fees.  



The relevant provisions of the Ordinance 2005-1 are listed below:  



A.  METERED SERVICE (applicable to all metered water service furnished on a monthly basis).  A readiness to serve charge, to which is added to the charge computed at the quantity rate for water used during the billing period.

1. Basic Capital Facilities Improvement Fee (5/8 meter) . . .  . .     . . .$2,500.00



E.  RECONNECTION FEE:  (To have a meter reconnected that has been removed).  To have a meter reconnected a non-refundable fee of $50.00 plus the credit deposit must be made within 90 days.  After 90 days a customer will be put on standby and a new capital facilities improvement fee and a meter set fee will be charged.  Standby will be applied from date of meter being removed.

   

The actual relationship between the Capital Facilities Improvement Fee and the Reconnection Fee is unclear in the Ordinance language, and has caused many misunderstandings in the community, primarily in the real estate trade and with persons purchasing foreclosed or bank-owned properties.  



[bookmark: _GoBack]A draft Resolution has been prepared to revise the Reconnection Fee language for clarity and ease of applicability.  The attached Resolution is effective immediately and its adoption applies going forward and does not apply to any reconnection fees charged in the past. The proposed Ordinance amendments are termed “Interim” as staff intends to perform a full overhaul of all provisions of the Ordinance in the coming months.  

 

Recommended Motion

Approve Resolution 2014-______, approving amendments to Exhibit A Schedule of Rates and Charges of Ordinance 2005-1.  


Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

Regular Meeting of December 15, 2014



AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA



5g.  Resolution adopting Ordinance 2014-01, an ordinance adopting the provisions of the Uniform Construction Cost Accounting Act pursuant to the California Public Contract Code





Background

Community Services District law limits the amount of work we can perform by force account (internal labor) and by contract, without seeking compensative bids.  Competitive bidding requirements can add 15% to 20% to a project cost, do not always guarantee that you get the project or bids you want, and can overwhelm a small staff.   Noncompliance with competitive bidding laws can result in serious fines, lawsuits and scrutiny.  



Many of our infrastructure projects cost enough to require competitive bidding.  The California Public Contract Code   22000 allows for the District to adopt the Uniform Construction Cost Accounting Act and use informal bidding procedures for projects costing up to $175,000 and even les formal bidding procedures for projects costing less than $45,000.  Adopting these procedures will save the District many thousands of dollars in project and administrative costs.  



At the November Board meeting, staff was directed to prepare an Ordinance to implement the Act.  Attached is a draft Ordinance 2014-01, adopting the procedures of the Uniform Construction Cost Accounting Act.  The ordinance is currently under review by District counsel and any changes recommended by him will be included in the Ordinance as adopted.    



Recommended Motion

[bookmark: _GoBack]I move to approve Resolution ____, approving Ordinance 2014-01 detailing the District’s adoption of the Uniform Construction Cost Accounting Act.  






[bookmark: _GoBack]ORDINANCE NO 2014-01



AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT ADOPTING AND SETTING FORTH IMPLEMENTATION POLICIES FOR COMPLETING CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS UNDER THE UNIFORM CONSTRUCTION COST ACCOUNTING ACT



WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District desires to govern the District's selection of contractors through informal bidding procedures, in accordance with California Public Contract Code Sections 22000 and following;



NOW, THEREFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES ORDAIN AS  FOLLOWS:



INFORMAL BIDDING



1. Application

2. Definitions

3. Work of $45,000 or Less

4. Informal Bidding Procedures

5. Contractor's List

6. Notice Inviting Informal Bids

7. Mailing of Notices Inviting Informal Bids and Project Description

8. Rejection of Bids/No Bids

9. Bids Received in Excess of $175,000

10. Award of Contracts



I.	APPLICATION



Contracts for Work of $175,000 or less shall be governed by the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act, Division 2, Part 3, Chapter 2, of the Public Contract Code, Section 22000 et seq. and this Ordinance.



2. DEFINITIONS



For purposes of this part, and in accordance with the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act ("Act") (Public Contract Code Section 22000, et seq.), the terms are defined as follows:



a. "Public Project" means:



(I) Construction, reconstruction, erection, alteration, renovation, improvement, demolition, and repair work involving any publicly owned, leased, or operated facility, infrastructure or related appurtenance; or



(2)	Painting or repainting of any publicly owned, leased, or operated facility.



b. "Maintenance Work" means:



(I) Routine, recurring, and usual work for the preservation or protection of any publicly owned or publicly operated facility for its intended purposes; or



1



(2) Minor repainting; or



(3) Resurfacing of streets and highways at less than one inch; or



(4) Landscape  maintenance,	including  mowing,  watering,  trimming,  pruning, planting, replacement of plants, and servicing of irrigation and sprinkler systems.



c. "Work" means either a Public Project or Maintenance Work as defined above.



d. "Facility" means any plant, building, structure, ground facility, real property, streets and highways, or other public work improvement.



3. WORK OF $45,000 OR LESS



Pursuant to Public Contract Code Sections 22003 and 22032(a), any Work as defined herein, of forty-five thousand dollars ($45,000) or less may be performed by the employees of the District by force account, by negotiated contract, or by purchase order.



4. INFORMAL BIDDING PROCEDURES



Any Work, as defined herein, of one hundred seventy five thousand dollars ($175,000.00) or less may be contracted for by the informal bidding procedures set forth in this part.



5. CONTRACTOR'S LIST



A list of qualified contractors for Public Projects, identified according to categories of work ("Contractors List"), shall be developed and maintained by the District in accordance with the minimum criteria determined by the California Uniform Construction Cost Accounting Commission ("Commission").



6. NOTICE INVITING INFORMAL BIDS



Where Work subject to the provisions of this part is to be performed and the Work does not meet the criteria set forth herein in section 3 above, or informal bidding is desired, a notice inviting informal bids shall be mailed to all contractors for the category of work to be bid, as shown on the Contractors List, and to all appropriate construction trade journals as specified by the Commission. Additional contractors and/or construction trade journals may be notified at the District's discretion. If there is no Contractors List for the particular category of work to be performed, the notice inviting bids shall be sent only to the construction trade journals specified by the Commission. If the product or service required to be performed is, in the discretion of the District, determined to be proprietary in nature such that it can be obtained only from a certain contractor or contractors, the notice inviting informal bids may be sent exclusively to such contractor or contractors.



4



7. MAILING OF NOTICES INVITING INFORMAL BIDS AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION



The mailing of notices to contractors and/or construction trade journals shall be completed not less than 10 calendar days before bids are due.  The notice inviting bids shall: (1) describe the Work in general terms; (2) explain how more detailed information about the proposed Work may be obtained; and

(3) state the time, date, and location for the submission of bids.



8. REJECTION OF BIDS/NO BIDS



a. The District Board of Directors may, in its sole discretion, reject any bids presented. If, after the first invitation of bids, all bids received are rejected, after reevaluating its cost estimates of the project, the District shall have the option of either of the following:



(1) The District may abandon the project or re-advertise for bids in the manner described in this part; or



(2) The Board of Directors may, by passage of a resolution by a four-fifths majority, declare that the project can be performed more economically by its employees; the District may have the project done by force account (i.e., by using internal resources including but not limited to labor, equipment, materials, supplies, and subcontracts of the District), without further compliance with this part.



b. If no bids are received, the project may be performed by force account without a Board of Directors resolution or by negotiated contract.



9. BIDS RECEIVED IN EXCESS OF $175,000.00



If all bids received are in excess of $175,000.00, the Board of Directors may, by passage of a resolution by a four-fifths vote, award the contract for $187,500.00, or less, to the lowest responsible bidder, if the Board of Directors determines that the cost estimate was reasonable.



10. AWARD OF CONTRACTS



Section 1.	Except for bids in excess of $175,000.00, the Board of Directors is authorized to award or enter into contracts pursuant to the provisions of this part. If informal bidding has been solicited, the District shall award the contract to the lowest responsible bidder. If two or more bids are the same and the lowest, the District may accept the contractor if its choice.



Section 2.	All existing contracting policies and procedures of the District are hereby amended to comply with this Ordinance. 





Section 3.	This Ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given effect in a manner that imposes upon the District or any officer or employee thereof a mandatory duty of care toward persons and property within or without the District so as to provide a basis of civil liability for damages, except as otherwise imposed by law.



Section 4. If any provision of this ordinance or  application thereof to any person or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not effect other provisions or applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are severable. The Board of Directors hereby declares that it would have adopted this ordinance irrespective of the validity of any particular portion thereof.



Section 5. This Ordinance shall become effective seven days after is publication or posting; whichever is used. 



Section 6.    Within fifteen (15) days after its final passage, the Board Secretary shall prepare and cause a fair and adequate summary of this Resolution to be posted or published in full accordance with Section 6490 of the Health and Safety Code.



The foregoing ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District held on December 15, 2014 and passed by the following vote of the board members present.



On motion of Board member ______________________, seconded by Board member _____________, the foregoing Ordinance was duly passed by the Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District at a Regular meeting held on December 15, 2014, by the following vote:



AYES: 

NOES:	



ABSTENTIONS:	

ABSENT: 

ATTEST:









Syndie Marchiesiello, District Secretary

















Resolution No. 2012-07


Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

Regular Meeting of December 15, 2014



AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA



5h.  Resolution approving a standard form of agreement to be used for all district construction and consulting services projects



Background

Throughout the year, the District will enter into contract for a variety of small and large construction projects, as well as for the engagement of certain consulting services such as engineering, audit, specialized legal, etc.  Many times, the contractor with which we are seeking to do work will present a draft form of agreement for our use in documenting the contractual arrangement between the parties.  



Before the District enters into any contract written by others, it should have our legal counsel review the contract to protect the District from any unexpected or unwanted terms or conditions.  If we enter into contract without having the agreement reviewed by counsel, we are opening ourselves up to potential liabilities, misunderstandings or worse, lawsuits in which we may be at a disadvantage.  



Having our attorney review each and every contract issued by others is costly and time consuming. The most efficient solution to ensure that each contract in which we enter into meets our desired terms and conditions, and is written from the legal contracting perspective of protection of the District, is for the District to adopt a standard form of agreement for each of the types of contracting it will be doing.  The contractors, consultants and vendors to be used by the District will then be required to use our pre-approved standard form of agreement.  



There can be disadvantages in requiring our contractors to use our agreement form, in that they may want to increase their price to cover any un foreseen liability, added insurance or other condition with which they are unfamiliar.  There are some consultants, primarily engineering, whose corporate requirements do not allow the use of our contract form, and in that case we would consider the use of their agreement or to modify ours.  



Included with this agenda item are two draft forms of agreement; one for construction work and the second for consulting services. These agreements have been prepared by my previous legal counsel and if approved by this Board, will be submitted to our legal counsel for a single review, and future update as laws change.  These agreements will be included with any bid documents or Request for Proposals (RFP) so the contractor knows in advance the contract requirements.  There are sections of the agreement that may be modified based on the scope, cost and type of work to be completed.  For example, the insurance requirements may be increased or decreased, ownership of documents defined differently, scope of work or attachments changed to make sure that the contract matches the work.  



Recommended Motion

[bookmark: _GoBack]I move to approve Resolution ____, approving standard forms of agreement for both construction and consulting services as presented/amended.    




 SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES


THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this _____________________ day of _____________________, 20___, by and between the LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of California, hereinafter referred to as “District” and _____________________________________________________ hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”.


RECITALS



WHEREAS, District desires to obtain services from Consultant as specified in Section 1; and



WHEREAS, Consultant is duly licensed, qualified and equipped to perform said services for the benefit of District; and



WHEREAS, the performance of such services by Consultant has been determined by District to be in the public interest.



NOW, THEREFORE, District and Consultant agree as follows:



1.     Scope of Work.  District engages the services of Consultant as an independent contractor to perform the work and render the services described in Exhibit A attached hereto and in Consultant’s Proposal to District dated ________________________________ attached hereto as Exhibit B (hereinafter referred to as the “Work”), both of which are incorporated. The Work is generally described as follows:____________________________________________________________________________        ________________________________.  


Consultant shall (a) provide all labor, equipment, material, supplies, advice, consultation, analysis, administration, and preparation of policies, procedures and documents required or necessary to properly, competently and completely perform the Work; (b) determine the method, details and means of doing the Work; and (3) perform the Work in a manner commensurate with the highest professional standards of qualified and experienced personnel in Consultant’s field.



2.     Payment.  In exchange for the Work, District shall pay to Consultant a fee based on [select one]:


___   Consultant’s actual time and material necessarily and actually expended on the Work in accordance with Consultant’s fee schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit ___ and incorporated herein.


___    The fee and billing arrangement described on Exhibit ____ attached hereto and incorporated herein.


___     The following: _________________________________________________________________


_____________________________________________________________________________________


___   The total fee for the Work shall not exceed $_____________.  This fee shall include all of Consultant’s costs and expenses related to the Work.  At the end of each month [or] Upon completion of the Work [strike phrase that does not apply], Consultant shall submit to District an invoice for the Work performed which shall specifically describe the details of the Work performed for which compensation is requested, and itemize the actual time expended by Consultant in providing such work, if applicable.  If the Work is satisfactorily completed and the invoice is accurately computed District shall pay the invoice within thirty (30) days of its receipt.  There shall be no compensation for extra or additional work or services by Consultant other than those specifically described in Section 1 hereof, unless approved in advance in writing by District.



3.     Term.  



        A.     This Agreement shall take effect on the above date and shall continue in effect until completion of the Work to the satisfaction of District unless sooner terminated as provided below.  Select one:


____     Consultant shall complete the Work no later than ___________________, 20___.  This deadline may be extended by District for good cause shown by Consultant.


____     Consultant shall perform the Work diligently and as expeditiously as possible, consistent with the professional skill and care appropriate for the orderly progress of the Work.




      B.    Time is of the essence in this Agreement.



      C.     This Agreement may be terminated for any or all portions of the Work by either party upon written notice to the other party in the event of a substantial failure of performance by such other party; or if District, by resolution of its Board of Directors, should deem it necessary or desirable to abandon or indefinitely postpone the prosecution of any part or all of the Work.


D. In the  event of such  abandonment,  postponement or  default by District,  District shall


pay to Consultant as full payment for all services performed and all expenses incurred under this Agreement, in an amount which bears the same ratio to the total fee otherwise payable under this Agreement as the services actually rendered hereunder by Consultant bear to the total services necessary for the full performance of the Work.  There shall be deducted from such amount, however, all payments heretofore made by District to Consultant under this Agreement.  In ascertaining the services actually rendered hereunder up to the date of such termination of this Agreement, consideration shall be given to both completed services and services in the process of completion.


                    E.     In the event of default in performance by Consultant, the provisions of Section 4 hereof shall apply.



4.     Default by Consultant.  If Consultant fails to expeditiously advance the Work, or performs work that does not comply with the requirements of this Agreement, or fails to perform any task or produce any documents required by this Agreement, or is guilty of any other material breach of the terms of this Agreement, District may (1) suspend payment until such time as the default is remedied by Consultant; or (2) by written notice to Consultant terminate Consultant’s right to perform all or any portion of the Work.  Consultant hereby agrees to pay District all damages sustained as a result of default by Consultant.  If District terminates Consultant’s right to perform the Work, District may have the work performed by others and charge the cost to Consultant.  The cost of completion by District shall include reasonable reimbursement for additional executive and administrative expenses along with all damages for delay and other damages sustained by District as a result of Consultant’s default.  If the cost and expense of completing the Work, when added to the sum of amounts previously paid to Consultant under this Agreement and any amounts due but unpaid to Consultant at the time of such termination, exceed the contract price, District may deduct the amount of the excess from any such amounts then due Consultant.  If the amount of such excess is larger than the amounts then due Consultant, Consultant shall immediately pay such excess or the balance thereof to District.



5.     Ownership of Documents.  Every document prepared by Consultant under this Agreement shall be the exclusive property of District.  By this Agreement, Consultant transfers all of its right, title and interest in such documents to District.  To the extent any document prepared under this Agreement constitutes a copyrightable work, the Work under this Agreement shall be considered a work for hire and by this Agreement Consultant shall be deemed to transfer all rights, title and interest in the copyrightable work to District, including the exclusive copyright.  Documents prepared by Consultant under this Agreement shall not be provided by Consultant to any other person without District’s prior written approval.


           6.     Compliance with Laws.  Consultant shall perform the Work in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations regarding safety of persons and property and their protection from damage, injury or loss, including applicable Cal-OSHA regulations.  Consultant also shall possess and maintain all permits, licenses and certificates that may be required for it to perform the Work.  Consultant shall comply with all laws and regulations as required by local, state and federal agencies regarding nondiscrimination including, but not limited to, Title VII of the Civil Right of 1964, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Age Discrimination Employment Act of 1967, and the California Fair Employment and Housing Act.  The Consultant is aware of the District’s anti-harassment policy and agrees to abide by the policy, practices and procedures set forth and established by the District.



7.     Indemnification.  Consultant shall indemnify, defend, protect, and hold harmless District, and its officers, employees, volunteers and agents from and against any and all liability, losses, claims, damages, expenses, demands, and costs (including, but not limited to, attorney, expert witness and consultant fees, and litigation costs) of every type and description to which it may be subjected or put to by reason of or resulting from: (1) the performance of or failure to perform the Work or any other obligations of this Agreement by Consultant or Consultant’s agents or employees; (2) any alleged negligent act or omission of Consultant, or Consultant’s agents or employees in connection with any acts performed or required to be performed pursuant to this Agreement; or (3) any dangerous or defective condition arising or resulting from any actions or omissions of Consultant, Consultant’s agents or employees in carrying out the provisions of this Agreement.  This indemnification is effective and shall apply whether or not any such action is alleged to have been caused in part by District as a party indemnified hereunder.  This indemnification shall not include any claim arising from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the District or its employees.  Consultant’s obligations under this indemnification provision shall survive the termination, or completion of Work, under this Agreement.



8.     Insurance.



       A.     Types and Limits.  Consultant at its sole cost and expense shall procure and maintain for the duration of this agreement the following types and limits of insurance:


           Type                                                          Limits                                    Scope

Commercial Public Liability

$1,000,000 per occurrence
at least as broad as


and Property Damage






ISO CG 0001


Automobile Liability


$1,000,000 per accident

at least as broad as ISO











CA 0001, code 1 (any











auto)


Workers’ Compensation


statutory limits


Employers’ Liability


$1,000,000 per accident



       B.     Other Requirements.  The public liability, property damage and automobile liability insurance furnished by Consultant shall name District as an additional insured and shall directly protect, as well as provide the defense for District, its officers, agents and employees as well as Consultant, and its agents, and employees, if any, from all suits, actions, damages, losses or claims of every type and description to which they may be subjected by reason of or resulting from Consultant’s operations in the performance of the Work pursuant to this Agreement, and all insurance policies shall so state.  Said insurance shall also specifically cover the contractual liability of Consultant.  Said insurance shall also specify that it acts as primary insurance and District’s insurance shall not contribute with Consultant’s insurance.  If Consultant fails to maintain such insurance, District may declare a default in the performance of this Agreement and exercise the remedies specified in Section 5 of this Agreement.



       C.     Consultant shall be permissibly self insured or shall carry full workers’ compensation coverage for all persons employed, either directly or through subcontractors, in carrying out the Work contemplated by this Agreement and in accordance with the Workers’ Compensation Act contained in the Labor Code of the State of California.  If Consultant fails to maintain such insurance, District may declare a default in the performance of this Agreement and exercise the remedies specified in Section 5 of this Agreement.



       D.     Consultant agrees to furnish a certificate or certificates substantiating the fact that it has taken out the insurance set forth above for the period covered by the Agreement and all endorsements substantiating coverage of District and its agents and employees as additional insureds.  All insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating A:VII or better unless otherwise accepted in writing by District.


                        Each such certificate shall bear an endorsement precluding the cancellation or reduction in coverage of any policy covered by such certificate before the expiration of thirty (30) days after District shall receive notification of such cancellation or reduction.



9.     Independent Contractor.  The parties hereto agree that at all times during the term of this Agreement Consultant, Consultant’s employees and agents hired to perform services pursuant to this Agreement are independent contractors and are not agents or employees of District.  Consultant shall have control over the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures for performing and coordinating the Work required by this Agreement.  District shall have the right to control Consultant only insofar as the result of Consultant’s services rendered pursuant to this Agreement.  If, in the performance of this Agreement, any third parties are employed or contracted by Consultant, such employees or subcontractors shall be entirely and exclusively under the direction, supervision and control of Consultant.  All terms of employment, including hours, wages, working conditions, discipline, hiring and discharging or any other term of employment or contract shall be determined by Consultant, and District shall have no right or authority over such persons or the terms of their employment or contract.


                   Therefore, neither Consultant or any third persons employed by or contracted by Consultant to perform services pursuant to this Agreement shall be entitled to workers’ compensation benefits from District should Consultant or any of its employees or contractors sustain an injury in the course of performing services specified in this Agreement.  Furthermore, neither Consultant nor any third persons or contractors employed by Consultant shall be entitled to any other benefits payable to employees of District.  Consultant hereby agrees to defend and hold District harmless from any and all claims that may be made against District based on any contention by any third party that an employer/employee relationship exists or that a contractual relationships exists between District and that third party by reason of this Agreement.


                   Consultant represents that it, and its employees and contractors, if applicable, are properly licensed and will remain so during the progress of the Work contemplated by this Agreement.



10.   Entire Agreement.  This writing and the documents incorporated herein by reference as Exhibits A and B, represent the sole, entire, exclusive and integrated contract between the parties concerning the Work, and supersedes all prior oral and/or written negotiations, representations or contracts.  Each party to this Agreement acknowledges that no representations or promises have been made by any party hereto which are not embodied herein, and that no other agreement or promise not contained in this Agreement or in the incorporated documents shall be valid or binding.  This Agreement may be amended only by a subsequent written contract approved and executed by both parties.



11.    Successors and Assignment.  This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the heirs, successors and assigns of the parties; however, Consultant shall not subcontract, assign or transfer this Agreement or any part of it without the prior written consent of District.



12.   No Waiver of Rights.  Any waiver at any time by either party of its rights as to a breach or default of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver as to any other breach or default.  No payment by District to Consultant shall be considered or construed to be an approval or acceptance of any Work or a waiver of any breach or default.



13.   Severability.  If any part of this Agreement is held to be void, invalid or unenforceable, then the remaining parts will nevertheless continue in full force and effect.



14.   Governing Law.  This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.



15.   Notice.  Any notice, invoice or other communication that is required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and either served personally or sent by prepaid, first class U.S. mail addressed as follows:




District:
Lake Don Pedro Community Services District








9751 Merced Falls Road

La Grange , CA 95329





Attention: ________________________



Consultant:
________________________________________






________________________________________






________________________________________






________________________________________


Any party may change its address by notifying the other party of the change in the manner provided above.


16. Attorneys Fees.  In the event of litigation between the parties, or if a party becomes


involved in a litigation because of wrongful acts of the other party, the prevailing or innocent party  shall  be  entitled  to an award  of  reasonable  attorneys  fees  from  the  other  party.  The 


prevailing party will be entitled to an award of attorneys fees in an amount sufficient to compensate the prevailing for all attorneys fees incurred in good faith.







LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  


By: _________________________________________



 ____________________________________________






                                                         Name


 



 ____________________________________________







                                               Title







CONSULTANT






By: _________________________________________






 ____________________________________________








                                   Name







 ____________________________________________








                                    Title




 SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1 
AGREEMENT


This Agreement is  made and entered into this day of ______________________, 20___, between LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of California, hereinafter referred to as “District” and _____________________________________________, hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”. 



WITNESSETH


WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of District have caused a [Notice Inviting Bids and general description, or Scope of Work Description and Expectations] of the work herein mentioned to be prepared, and have approved that said work be authorized for completion; and 



WHEREAS, District Ordinance ____________ adopts the Uniform Construction Cost Accounting Act and procedures pursuant to California Public Contract Code 22000 et seq. which authorizes the District to enter into negotiated contracts for projects up to Forty Five Thousand Dollars ($45,000.00) and projects to be constructed pursuant to informal bidding procedures for projects up to One Hundred Seventy Five Thousand Dollars ($175,000.00); and 



WHEREAS, the District has determined that it is in the best interest of the District to enter into this contract with Contractor for the completion of the work herein mentioned; and 



WHEREAS, Contractor has agreed to perform the work specified in the [Notice Inviting Bids and general description, or Scope of Work Description and Expectations] for the amount set forth herein;



NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises contained herein, it is mutually agreed between the parties hereto as follows:



CONTRACT DOCUMENTS



1. 
The following documents, as applicable, are by this reference incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement:  The Standard Construction Specifications adopted by the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District, as amended, including the General Specifications, the Standard Specifications, the Standard Drawings and the Special Provisions; the contract drawings; any Notice Inviting Bids and/or Instructions to Bidders; the bid and proposal of Contractor, all required bonds, and all supplemental agreements covering alterations, amendments or extensions to this Agreement.  The documents which describe the work to be performed are collectively referred to herein as the “Plans and Specifications”.




It is understood and agreed that all said contract documents are intended to cooperate, so that any work called for in one document and not mentioned in the other, or vice-versa, is to be executed the same as if mentioned in all contract documents, so that the true meaning of all documents, when taken together, shall control the work pursuant to this Agreement. 



SCOPE OF WORK


2. 
Contractor hereby agrees to furnish all labor, materials, services, transportation, appliances, mechanical workmanship, transportation, communication, scaffolding, hoisting, supervision, coordination, building permits, sales taxes, shop drawings and samples, to complete in a workman-like manner, the following work:  _____________________________, located at ____________________, as provided for and set forth in the Plans and Specifications, which Plans and Specifications are hereby incorporated herein by this reference and made a part of this Agreement.  




All of the work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall be under the supervision of, and performed to the satisfaction of, the assigned representative of District who shall have the right to reject any and all materials and supplies furnished by Contractor which do not comply with the Plans and Specifications, and who shall also have the right to require Contractor to replace any and all work furnished by Contractor which is not, either in workmanship or material, in strict accordance with the Plans and Specifications.  



COMPLETION


3. 
Contractor shall be required to begin work          calendar days after written notification to that effect by District, and to complete work in accordance with the Plans and Specifications to the satisfaction of District within ___________ calendar days from the date of the Notice to Proceed.




Should Contractor fail to complete the work described in this Agreement and the other contract documents incorporated herein within the time fixed for completion, Contractor shall be liable to District in the sum of One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) per calendar day for each day said work remains incomplete beyond the time set for completion in the Contract Documents as and for agreed and liquidated damages.  It is expressly agreed and stipulated by and between the parties hereto that said liquidated damages do not constitute a penalty since it would be impractical and extremely difficult to fix the actual amount of damages to District as the result of any failure to complete the work within the period of time specified in the contract documents.  Time is of the essence of this contract.



PAYMENT


4. 
District agrees, in consideration of the work to be performed herein and subject to the terms and conditions hereof, to pay Contractor all sums of money which may become due to Contractor in accordance with the terms of Contractor's bid and proposal and this Agreement, to wit:  ______________________ Dollars ($______.__). It is understood that with respect to that portion of the above sum which is based upon estimated quantities specified for the general scope of the work to be performed herein, that actual payment will be based upon the quantities as measured upon completion, and not upon estimated quantities.  No payment made under this Agreement shall be construed to be an acceptance of defective work or improper materials.




If Contractor performs the work in accordance with the Contract documents and to the satisfaction of District, District shall pay Contractor as follows: _______________________ _________________________________________________________________. However, no payment, including all progress payments and the final payment, shall be made to Contractor in excess of ninety percent (90%) of the percentage of work actually completed, plus a like percentage of the value of the material delivered on the ground or stored subject to, or under the control of, District.  The ten percent (10%) not paid shall be withheld by District until final completion and acceptance of the work.  However, in lieu of any withholding of money, and in accordance with the provisions of California Public Contract Code Section 22300, Contractor may substitute securities to insure performance under this Agreement.  




If payment is to be made by progress payments, Contractor may be paid progress payments at intervals of not less than thirty (30) days as the work progresses. As the basis for determining the amount of these progress payments, the Contractor shall, before commencing the work, submit to the District a detailed statement of all materials and labor included in its bid and proposal. This statement shall be so arranged that the value of the work as it progresses may be readily determined, and the first payment will not be considered as due hereunder until such statement is furnished by Contractor. Upon submission of a statement for a progress payment, and after verification thereof by the assigned representative of the District, a certificate for payment of the work actually performed, less ten percent (10%) thereof, will be issued by the District. No certificate will be issued until defective work and materials have been removed, replaced and made good in accordance with the Plans and Specifications.  In any event, payment made shall not be construed to be an acceptance of defective work or improper materials, and Contractor shall be required to remove, replace and/or repair any defective work and materials at its own expense.




Contractor shall be paid as the work progresses in the amount specified on each such certificate.  Contractor shall notify District when it encounters work which exceeds the quantities estimated immediately upon ascertaining the additional quantities.  Contractor shall apply for a Change Order as provided in Paragraph 5 of this Agreement, covering any such additional quantities within ten (10) days of the completion of the work.  Failure by Contractor to do so will result in a waiver by Contractor of its right to recover any additional compensation from the District for said additional quantities.




If at any time during the progress of the work or before the final payment is made, any stop notice or other lien or claim of lien is filed, or notification to withhold money for labor or material furnished by Contractor under this Agreement is served on the District, the District shall have the right to withhold from any monies due Contractor, an amount sufficient to discharge any or all such liens or claims plus reasonable attorney fees and costs. Releases or receipted vouchers in settlement of these liens or claims satisfactory to the District must be furnished to the District by Contractor before the withheld money will be paid to Contractor. If Contractor has not settled the stop notice, liens or claims within a reasonable time, not to exceed thirty (30) days from and after such stop notice, lien or claim is made, the District shall have the right to make a claim on Contractor's bond for payment of such stop notices, liens or claims. The District shall also have the right, but shall not be obliged, to discharge any or all such stop notices, liens or claims out of money withheld from Contractor. The District reserves the right to make payments to Contractor in the form of checks payable jointly to Contractor and to any of its subcontractors or suppliers that have asserted a stop notice or claim of mechanic's lien against the District.  Any monies held in retention or otherwise by  the District shall not be considered monies due and owing to Contractor until final payment is made pursuant to this Section 5, and all amounts have been deducted for any and all damages assessed pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement and/or monies expended by the District to complete the work as set forth in the Plans and Specifications and contemplated by the contract documents.




Upon submission of a statement for payment, unconditional waivers from all suppliers of labor, materials, equipment and/or supplies for the work, and after verification thereof by the assigned representative of District, a Notice of Completion and/or Notice of Acceptance will be issued by District.  Thirty-five (35) calendar days after the issuance of the Notice of Completion and/or Notice of Acceptance, the balance of the contract price will be paid to Contractor, provided there are no mechanic’s liens of record or stop notices in effect at that time.   No Notice of Completion and/or Notice of Acceptance shall be issued and/or no payment shall be made to Contractor until all defective work and materials have been removed, replaced and made good in accordance with the Plans and Specifications.  


CHANGE ORDERS


5.
District may, at any time, by written change order make changes in the work, or extend the time to complete the work, as deemed necessary by District.  If such changes cause an increase or decrease in Contractor’s cost of, or time required for, performance of this Agreement, there shall be an equitable adjustment in the payment price.  The price adjustment shall be determined by one of the following methods in the order of precedence listed: 




A.
Based on the unit prices contained in section 4, if applicable.  




B.
Mutually agreed-upon lump sum or unit price adjustment. 




C.
Contractor’s actual cost of labor (wages and benefits), materials (actual purchase price, sales tax, freight and delivery) and equipment/tools (at actual or fair/prevailing rental rates) directly engaged in the performance of the extra work plus a fifteen percent (15%) mark-up for overhead and profit.  For price adjustments under this section, Contractor shall provide to District an itemized breakdown of the quantities and prices used in the extra work, and it shall make available all source documents, including payroll records, invoices, purchase orders, contracts and lease agreements. 



PREVAILING WAGES


6.
Pursuant to the provisions of Articles 1 and 2 of Chapter 1, Part 7, Division II of the Labor Code of the State of California, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages, and not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holidays and overtime work, for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to execute the work or any part of the work completed under this Agreement shall be paid to all workers, laborers and mechanics employed in the execution of said work by Contractor or by any sub-contractor doing or contracting to do any part of the work contemplated by this Agreement.  The appropriate determination of the Director of the California Department of Industrial Relations is filed with, and available for inspection, at the office of the District Administrator.




Pursuant to Labor Code Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit, as a penalty to the District, an amount of not more than Fifty Dollars ($50.00) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the stipulated prevailing rates for any work done pursuant to this Agreement by Contractor or any subcontractor working under Contractor.  The amount of the penalty shall be determined by the Labor Commissioner and shall be based on consideration of the Contractor's mistake, inadvertence, or neglect in failing to pay the correct rate of prevailing wages, the previous record of the Contractor in meeting his or her prevailing wage obligations, or Contractor's willful failure to pay the correct rate of prevailing wages.  A mistake, inadvertence, or neglect in failing to pay the correct rate of prevailing wages is not excusable if the Contractor had knowledge of his or her obligations under the Labor Code.  In addition to said penalty, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker by the Contractor.  Contractor shall post, at each job site, a copy of such prevailing rate of per diem wages as determined by the Director of the California Department of Industrial Relations.




Contractor and each subcontractor under Contractor shall keep an accurate payroll record showing name, address, social security number, work classification, straight-time and overtime hours worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid to each person certified in a trade or a craft, for each apprentice, worker, or other employee of Contractor or subcontractor performing a part of the work contemplated by this Agreement. Contractor shall provide or make available for inspection, a certified copy of such payroll records as specified in Section 1776 of the Labor Code of the State of California. Attention is directed to Section 1777.5 of the Labor Code of the State of California concerning the employment of apprentices, and Contractor is required to comply with the provisions of that section.


INSURANCE


7.
Contractor shall carry and maintain during the life of this Agreement, such public liability, property damage and contractual liability insurance and workers' compensation insurance as specified below:




 A.
Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance. Contractor shall furnish public liability and property damage insurance which includes, but is not limited to, personal injury, property damage, losses relating to independent contractors, products and equipment, explosion, collapse and underground hazards in a minimum amount of not less than a combined single limit of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) for one or more persons injured and property damaged in each occurrence.





The public liability and property damage insurance furnished by Contractor shall also name District as an additional insured and shall directly protect, as well as provide the defense for District, its officers, agents and employees, as well as Contractor, all subcontractors and suppliers, if any, from all suits, actions, damages, losses or claims of every type and description to which they may be subjected by reason of, or resulting from Contractor's operations in the performance of the work pursuant to this Agreement, and all insurance policies shall so state.  Said insurance shall also specifically cover the contractual liability of Contractor.  Said insurance shall also specify that it acts as primary insurance.





If Contractor fails to maintain such insurance, District may declare a default in the performance of this Agreement and exercise the remedies specified in Section 13 of this Agreement.




B.
Workers' Compensation Insurance. Contractor shall be permissibly self-insured or shall carry full workers' compensation insurance coverage for all persons employed, either directly or through subcontractors, in carrying out the work contemplated by this Agreement, in accordance with the Workers' Compensation Act contained in the Labor Code of the State of California.





If Contractor fails to maintain such insurance, District may declare a default in the performance of this Agreement and exercise the remedies specified in Section 13 of this Agreement.





By execution of this Agreement, Contractor certifies as follows:  


“I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require every employer to be insured against liability for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, I will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this contract.”  




As part of the execution of this Agreement, Contractor agrees to furnish a certificate or certificates substantiating the fact that it has taken out the insurance set forth above for the period covered by the Contractor and with any insurance carrier acceptable to District under terms satisfactory to District.  Each such certificate shall bear an endorsement precluding the cancellation or reduction in coverage of any policy covered by such certificate before the expiration of thirty (30) days after District shall have received notification of such cancellation or reduction.



PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS


8.
Contractor shall, at the time of execution of this Agreement, file two (2) separate bonds with District, each made payable to District.  These bonds shall be issued by a surety company authorized to do business in the State of California and shall be maintained during the entire life of this Agreement at the expense of Contractor.  One bond shall be in the amount of One Hundred Percent (100%) of the contract price set forth in this Agreement and shall guarantee the faithful performance of all aspects of this Agreement.  The second bond shall be the payment bond required by Division Three, Part 4, Title 15, Chapter 7 of the Civil Code of the State of California, and shall be in the amount of One Hundred Percent (100%) of the contract price set forth in this Agreement to guarantee the payment of wages and of bills contracted for materials, supplies or equipment used in the performance of this Agreement. Any alterations made in the specifications which are a part of this Agreement or in any provisions of this Agreement shall not operate to release any surety from liability on any bond required hereunder, and the consent to make such alterations is hereby given, and any surety on said bonds hereby waives the provisions of Section 2819 of the Civil Code.   Prior to beginning work under this Agreement, Contractor shall furnish a certification from either the Department of Insurance and/or Siskiyou County Clerk evidencing the status of any and all sureties issuing the bonds required under this Agreement.  Contractor further certifies and represents that said sureties are authorized to do business in the State of California and that the bonds fully comply with Civil Code Sections 3247 and 3248.



INDEMNIFICATION


9.
Contractor shall assume the defense of, and indemnify and save harmless, the District, its officers, employees and agents, and each and every one of them from and against all actions, liability, damages, claims, losses or expenses of every type and description to which it may be subjected or put to by reason of or resulting from: (l) the performance of, or failure to perform, the work or any other obligations of this Agreement by Contractor, any subcontractor or Contractor's agents or employees; (2) any alleged negligent act or omission of Contractor, any subcontractor, Contractor's agents or employees, in connection with any acts performed or required to be performed pursuant to this Agreement; (3) any dangerous or defective condition arising or resulting from any of the actions or omissions of Contractor, Contractor's agents or employees in carrying out the provisions of this Agreement. This indemnification is effective and shall apply whether or not any such action is alleged to have been caused in part by the District as a party indemnified hereunder. This indemnification shall not include any claim arising from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the District or its employees.


GUARANTEE


10.
Contractor unconditionally guarantees all materials and workmanship furnished under this Contract, and agrees to replace at its sole cost and expense, and to the satisfaction of District, any and all materials which may be defective or improperly installed.  Contractor shall repair or replace to the satisfaction of District any or all such work that may prove defective in workmanship or materials, ordinary wear and tear excepted, together with any other work which may be damaged or displaced in so doing.  This guarantee shall remain in effect for one year from the date of District’s acceptance of the work.  This guarantee does not excuse Contractor for any other liability related to defective work discovered after the guarantee period.  Contractor shall transfer to District all manufacturer and supplier warranties relating to the work, if any, upon completion of the work and prior to the final payment.




In the event of failure to comply with the above stated conditions within a reasonable time, District may have the defective work  repaired and made good at the expense of Contractor who will pay the costs and charges therefor immediately upon demand, including any reasonable management and administrative costs, and engineering, legal and other consultant fees incurred by District in enforcing this guarantee.  



PERMITS AND INSPECTIONS


11.
Contractor agrees and understands that it is the responsibility of Contractor to obtain and pay for all necessary permits required for the performance of the work described in this Agreement as well as calling for and obtaining all required inspections during the course of the work on the project which is the subject matter of this Agreement.  Contractor shall hold the following classification of a current and valid contractor’s license for the work: __________________________________________.



DEFAULT BY CONTRACTOR


12.
If Contractor fails to expeditiously advance the project, or installs work that does not comply with the requirements of the Plans and Specifications, fails to comply with any provision of law regarding the payment of employees, subcontractors and/or any third parties providing materials, equipment or supplies provided to the project, or fails to otherwise promptly pay for work or materials supplied to the project, or is guilty of any other material breach of the terms of this Agreement, the District may: (1) suspend payment until such time as the default is remedied by Contractor; or (2) by written notice to Contractor, terminate Contractor's right to perform all or any portion of the work. Contractor hereby agrees to pay the District all damages sustained as a result of default by Contractor. If the District terminates Contractor's right to perform the work, the District may have the work performed by others, or may complete the work itself, and charge the cost to Contractor. The cost of completion by the District shall include reasonable reimbursement  for additional executive and administrative  expense along with all damages for delay, including liquidated damages, and other damages sustained by the District as a result of Contractor's default.  The District may deduct from any and all monies owing to the Contractor, either by virtue of this Agreement or any other agreements between the District and the Contractor, any and all damages assessed by the District against the Contractor pursuant to the provision of this Agreement. 


MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS


13.
In the event of litigation between the parties, or if a party becomes involved in litigation because of wrongful acts of the other party, the prevailing or innocent party shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney's fees from the other party. The prevailing party will be entitled to an award of attorney's fees in an amount sufficient to compensate the prevailing party for all attorney's fees incurred in good faith.



14.
This Agreement shall bind and inure to the heirs, devisees, assignees and successors in interest of Contractor and to the successors in interest of District in the same manner as if such parties had been expressly named herein.  



15.
It is hereby expressly agreed that time is of the essence of this Agreement including all contract documents incorporated herein.



16.
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties regarding its subject matter.  If any provisions in this Agreement are held by any court to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall nevertheless continue in full force.  



17.
The terms of this Agreement may be modified only by the mutual consent and written agreement of District and Contractor.  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT has, by order of its Board of Directors, caused this Agreement to be signed by the Chairperson and Secretary of the Board of Directors and Contractor has executed this Agreement on the date and year first above written.


LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES

CONTRACTOR:  


DISTRICT


By: ___________________________________

By: ___________________________________


       
Chairperson




License No.:_____________________________

By: ___________________________________



Secretary


By: ___________________________________



Authorized Representative


Title: __________________________________


Page  -
-

Page  -
-




Lake Don Pedro Community Services District
December 11, 2014

[bookmark: _Toc4214690]Proposal for

[image: ]Lake Don Pedro CSD Emergency Water Supply 

[bookmark: _Toc52873031][bookmark: _Toc406097933][bookmark: _Toc4214692]


Summary

[image: ]The Lake Don Pedro Community Services District’s was formed to provide  an adequate and reliable water supply to the community of Don Pedro, situated between two of the state’s largest water supply reservoirs.  Unfortunately, the relentless three year drought has caused both of these reservoirs to diminish to their lowest historical levels.  

The District’s primary water supply in Lake McClure has dwindled to less than 8% of capacity and is predicted to be completely depleted by March 31, 2015.  Although the District has an emergency pump barge system in place to pump water to the District’s water treatment plant; that emergency system is not reliable operating in the conditions under which it has for the past year continuously.  As the Lake McClure water level continues to recede even in winter, the District does not have adequate materials and supplies on hand necessary to keep the emergency system operating down to the lake’s minimum pool level.  The District’s single groundwater well simply does not produce enough water to meet a reasonable portion of winter water demand.  

The District has developed a five phased project solution to provide immediate water supply reliability as well as long term drought resiliency.  

The phased project contains the following elements:

[bookmark: _GoBack]Complete a project to maximize the reliability of the existing emergency pumping system to allow for water to be pumped down to the lowest level possible 

Installation of groundwater wells adequate to meet winter demand in full and summer demand with 30% water conservation measures in place

Development of additional groundwater sources adequate to meet peak summer water demands

Evaluation and construction of a long term water supply project to end the District’s constant reliance on emergency pumping equipment and terribly high power costs

Depending on which long term project water supply project is constructed, the total cost of the project is estimated between $2.8 and $6.45 Million.  The immediate projects are designed in manageable projects sized at up to $500,000 each

When completed, these projects will ensure an adequate water supply to protect the health and safety of the community of Don Pedro.  

[bookmark: _Toc52873032][bookmark: _Toc406097934]
Introduction

The Lake Don Pedro Community Services District provides municipal potable water services to a current population of 2700 through approximately 1420 active connections in the rural residential community of Don Pedro; which lies between Lake McClure and Lake Don Pedro in Mariposa and Tuolumne Counties.  The District water system is also designed and stands ready to serve an additional 1800 vacant parcels that exist within the community.  

The District is staffed with a full time Board Secretary, part time Office Clerk, a full time Operations Manager and three full time state certified Operators certified both in Water Treatment Plant and Water Distribution System operations.  The District is managed under contract by a management consulting firm; with the firm’s principle having 20 years of water district management experience and serving as the managing consultant for the District.  The District is governed by a five member Board of Directors, elected at large from within the District.  The District also regularly engages consulting services from a qualified attorney, District Engineer and Certified Public Accountants to perform the annual financial audit.  

The water supply for the District is primarily derived from surface water pumped from the 1,024 million acre foot capacity Lake McClure, which is owned and operated by the Merced Irrigation District (MID). The water supply is supplied from two fixed submersible pumps on the banks of the lake near Barrett Cove Marina, that then pump the water directly to the District’s treatment plant approximately 1 mile away.  The pumps are set at elevation 700 feet above sea level (ASL) with the capability to pump down to elevation 710 ASL.  When the lake drops below 710 feet, an emergency floating pump barge containing two 150 HP pumps is launched and connected via pipeline to a surge tank and transfer pump located on the lake shore just above the high water level, adjacent to the Intake pump electrical control center.  Collectively these components are referred to herein as Emergency Pumping System.  In addition to surface water, the District operates one groundwater well with a firm yield of 50 gallons per minute (GPM). This water is of high quality and is provided conventional water treatment at the District’s water treatment plant before distribution to consumers.     

The District’s total end user water demand using the most recent four year average ranges from a January low of 17 acre feet consumed, to a July average high water use of 59 acre feet.  Considering the summertime average high temperatures approaching 100 degrees daily, with an average per capita water consumption of less than 150 gallons per day; our community residents use far less than the average water customer in adjacent communities and below the 2020 water conservation target for the San Joaquin Hydrologic Region.  

[bookmark: _Toc4214693][bookmark: _Toc52873033][bookmark: _Toc406097935]
Needs/Problems

The total water supply portfolio of the District is made up of surface water supplied from Lake McClure and groundwater from a single well.  Up to 1/3 of the District’s total annual water demand could be provided by the single well, but its maximum production of .33 acre feet per day provides only 16% of the peak daily summer demand.   Due to three years of relentless drought, the water stored in Lake McClure has dropped to approximately 7.5% of capacity with the water surface elevation of 595 above sea level; which is over 100 feet BELOW the District’s fixed intake pump system.  The surface elevation of the lake has been below 710 ASL since October 2013; requiring the use of the emergency pumping system for well over one year.  

As of the date of this proposal, the lake surface elevation is 595 feet ASL; leaving only approximately 35 feet of water over the muddy floor of the reservoir.  Estimates issued by the Merced Irrigation District (MID) predict that without significant precipitation this winter, the lake elevation will drop below 560 feet ASL by March 31, 2015.   

[bookmark: _Toc406097936]Existing Emergency Pumping SystemFigure 1



[image: L:\Infrastucture\Intake\close up low intake.jpg]As shown in Figure 1, a pump barge floats near the edge of the lake and is connected to a surge tank and pump, which in turn pumps water to the treatment plant.   As the lake level drops in the summer, the pump barge must be moved and pipe sections added/electrical cable extended as frequently as necessary, typically weekly or more, to remain in deep enough water to function, yet not too far into the lake to be unsafe to boaters.  During the winter and spring as rain and snowmelt fill the lake, the pump barge must continuously be move closer to shore by removing pipe lengths and shortening the electrical cable.  The process of moving the barge consumes 20% to 25% of all available operations staff time, reducing the time available for leak repair and system operation and maintenance.  

[image: ]Once the pump barge moves the water up the lake bank, as shown in Figure 2, to the surge tank located in the pump site, a single transfer pump operates nearly continuously during the summer to move the water from the lake side to the water treatment plant. 

The single emergency transfer pump, operating continuously, is the weakest link in the emergency supply system and its failure will result in long term water supply outages until additional pumps can be secured to resume operations.   Figure 2



Over 1200 feet of 12 inch pipe and the associated bolt kits and connection gaskets are required to connect the pump barge to the surge tank.  Our current inventory is only 700 feet, leaving the District over 500 feet short of locating the pump barge at the deepest portion of the remaining lake (560 foot pool).  Our current supply of electrical cable is 200 feet short of reaching the 560 foot pool level.  Additional cable may not be able to be spliced onto the existing cable due to extensive current loss over the entire cable length.  If additional cable is added to reach 560 foot water, the pumps may trip out and fail, ruin the pumps, or cable overheat and fail.  The larger sized cable required to connect the pump barge to elevation 560 is too heavy to handle with exiting manpower and equipment.  

The current intake submersible pump system operates between lake elevations 810 (full) and 710 ASL.  In 20% of the years since the inception of the District in the mid 1980’s, use of the emergency pumping system has been required.  This pumping system is extremely inefficient in pumping capacity, costing up to $20,000 per month in power costs alone.  The installation and movement of the barge is time consuming and dangerous for District staff and hazardous to boaters on the lake.  

Given the predictions for ongoing and potentially worsening drought, Lake McClure may certainly fall below elevation 560 ASL, causing the District to abandon this water source and switch to 100% groundwater supply.  The current groundwater well can only provide a maximum of 50% of the current daily winter water demand, and 16% of the peak summer daily demand.  

In the event that the surface water supply is depleted and the groundwater is inadequate to sustain minimal demands, the District will be forced to truck water to the treatment plant pumped from the deepest part of the lake at a cost of up to $20,000 per day or may decide to not provide adequate supply for sanitation and firefighting altogether due to lack of funds to perform the trucking operation.   

[bookmark: _Toc4214694][bookmark: _Toc52873034][bookmark: _Toc406097937]Goals/Objectives

The District has four immediate water supply related goals:

Goal 1 – Preserve existing remaining water supply through aggressive end user water conservation and water system leak repair. 

Goal 2 – Increase available water supply by immediately adding additional groundwater sources.

Goal 3 – Improve the reliability of our existing emergency supply system by planning and installing the necessary materials, supplies and equipment to reliably perform long term pumping from the lowest elevation possible in Barrett Cove; 560 feet ASL.   

Goal 4 – Improve long term drought resilience and community supply needs by designing and installing the infrastructure necessary to avoid the common reoccurrence of emergency pumping from a barge and transfer pump system. 

[bookmark: _Toc4214695][bookmark: _Toc52873035][bookmark: _Toc406097938]Procedures/Scope of Work

The proposed scope of work contains four separately identifiable projects, with one project split into two components for decision-making purposes.

[bookmark: _Toc406097939]Phase 1 – Emergency System Reliability Project

This project is intended to secure the District’s existing remaining water supply in Lake McClure down to the minimum surface elevation of 560 feet ASL.  The project increases serviceability and reliability of the system and its safety in operation by providing a motorized cable reel system and a new electrical cable of proper size to ensure that the required adequate voltage is received by the barge pumps.  The project provides a second emergency transfer pump and pump controls to allow for pump rotation and to provide redundancy and increased reliability.



[bookmark: _Toc406097940]Phase 2 – Groundwater Well Installation Project

This project involves increasing the District’s water supply portfolio by drilling two additional groundwater wells in the identified appropriate locations.  The wells will be located to connect by pipeline to the District’s raw water transmission system, to the treatment plant, so that the groundwater may be blended with remaining surface water and treated for distribution, or used as a sole source of water supply for treatment and distribution.  Two wells installed with similar capacities to the District’s existing well, and not supplemented with surface water will provide adequate water supply to meet winter water demands at 100% and 75% of the water demands on a daily basis through the month of May. Expenses for the project include planning, design, well drilling, connection pipeline installation and control equipment installation.  



[bookmark: _Toc406097941]Phase 3 – Groundwater Peak Demand Project

Phase 3 involves increasing groundwater production to a level of meeting up to 75% of the peak daily summer water demands of the District with groundwater alone.  There are several wells that have been drilled and tested in years past that were proven to produce significant groundwater, in a location appropriate for connection to the existing raw water transmission system to the treatment plant.  Depending upon the safe yield of the wells developed in Phase 2, and the production of the Phase 3 well(s), one to two additional wells will be developed.  Expenses for the project include easement purchase, planning, design, well drilling, connection pipeline installation and control equipment installation.  



[bookmark: _Toc406097942]Phase 4 A – McClure Point Intake Project

Conceptual plans have been previously discussed to install an intake pump system in the deepest water of Lake McClure, located at McClure point near New Exchequer dam. The new pump location would provide water supply far below the current minimum 560 elevation and at an depth where the lake is predicted to never drop below; providing maximum long term water supply reliability.   This project involves evaluation of the project’s feasibility from a constructability, cost and water supply shortage remediation basis and if determined feasible; planning, permitting, engineering design and construction plans and specifications developed.  Funding options will also be identified and all operational agreements developed. If the project is determined infeasible, Phase 4 B will be pursued.  



[bookmark: _Toc406097943]Phase 4 B – Barrett Cove Intake Extension Project

Extension of the existing submersible pump casings down to a permanent elevation of approximately 600 feet ASL has been determined to be cost effective and feasible.  This lower pumping elevation will increase water supply reliability significantly. Two new submersible pumps would be designed to pump efficiently through the new range of operation and installed in the new, lower pump casings.  However, due to the fact that even with the pumps at 600 feet ASL the emergency float pump would be required to operate in drought periods such as 2014, construction of this Phase is not recommended if the deep water intake is determined feasible and cost effective.    



[bookmark: _Toc406097944]Phase 5 – Water Supply Reliability/Drought Resiliency Project

This project involves the bidding and construction of the project designed in 4 A or 4 B above.  The timeline or construction of these projects depends upon complexity, weather, lake elevation at construction time, and relative need for the ability to pump water should the severe drought continue.  





[bookmark: _Toc4214696][bookmark: _Toc52873036][bookmark: _Toc406097945]
Timetable

Due to the inability to accurately predict the amount of precipitation to be received this winter, the current lake surface elevation, difficulty and advance notice time required for ordering pumps and securing well drilling contractors, the following schedule is intended to move as quickly as possible, but taking into consideration the inherent time lags. The timetable further assumes that the surface water in Lake McClure will be depleted by the end of March 2015.  


		

		Project Title

		Start and End Dates



		Phase One

		Emergency System Reliability Project

		June 2014 – March 2014



		Phase Two

		Groundwater Well Installation Project

		December 2014 – March 2015



		Phase Three

		Groundwater Peak Demand Project 

		January 2015 – May 2015



		Phase Four A

		McClure Point Intake Project

		January 2015 – January 2016



		Phase 4 B

		Barrett Cove Intake Extension Project

		March 2015 – June 2015



		Phase Five

		Water Supply Reliability/Drought Resiliency Project

		A: January 2016 – January 2017

B:  September 2015 – December 2015







[bookmark: _Toc4214697][bookmark: _Toc52873037][bookmark: _Toc406097946]Budget

Due to the many variables in estimating construction cost, the following budget amounts are estimated and will be revised as project design is complete.  


		

		Description of Work

		Anticipated Costs



		Phase One

		Emergency System Reliability Project

		$150,000



		Phase Two

		Groundwater Well Installation Project

		$500,000



		Phase Three

		Groundwater Peak Demand Project 

		$500,000



		Phase Four A

		McClure Point Intake Project

		$300,000



		Phase Four B

		Barrett Cove Intake Extension Project

		$150,000



		Phase Five

		Water Supply Reliability/Drought Resiliency Project

		A - $5,000,000

B - $1,500,00



		

		Total

		$ 2.8 to $6.45 Million





[bookmark: _Toc4214698][bookmark: _Toc4214701][bookmark: _Toc52873041][bookmark: _Toc406097947]
Next Steps

Due to the severity of the water shortage and the short timeframe for project implementation, the District is prepared to proceed as quickly as funding is available.    

1. Secure funding commitments from state and all other sources.

2. Continue aggressive implementation of the recently adopted mandatory water conservation measures and monitor lake level and conservation performance.  

3. Immediately hire an industrial electrical firm to inspect the electrical system controlling the emergency float pump system including cable, controls, connections, capacities, resistances, etc to determine appropriate wire size and control components to provide water supply reliability down to the lowest elevation of 560 feet ASL.  Preliminary evaluation has revealed that a new, larger cable will likely be needed from the control panel to the float pumps.  

4. Order cable and any necessary controls immediately. Design and install new cable reel system and install new cable and controls when received.  

5. Order replacement (second) intake transfer pump immediately due to long lead time for manufacture. Design pump connections and controls and install pump and controls when received.   

6. Immediately hire a water resources firm specializing in groundwater hydrogeology to determine the optimal drilling locations, pump and casing design.  

7. Complete engineering design and permitting for well installation.

8. Contract for well installation and connection to raw water system.  

9. Complete feasibility analysis on the McClure Point Intake Project, and

a. Design and permit the McClure Point Intake, or

b. Barrett Cove Intake Extension

10. Fund and construct permanent water supply reliability/drought resilience project.



[bookmark: _Toc52873042][bookmark: _Toc406097948]
Appendix

Lake Elevation prediction table provided by Merced Irrigation District

Lake Elevation figure table provided by Merced Irrigation District

LDPCSD Resolution 2014-02 Declaring a Water Supply Emergency

LDPCSD Resolution 2014-09 Declaring a Water Supply Warning





Page 2 of 10

image3.jpeg



image4.jpeg



image1.jpg



image2.jpg




Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

Regular Meeting of December 15, 2014

AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA

e.
Discussion regarding the development of District management Goals and Objectives. 

Background


Establishing Board/District priorities and setting forth clear and measurable management performance expectations, goals and objectives, herein referred to as Management Objectives, is one of the most important roles of the District Board of Directors.  The process of developing Management Objectives will also serve to help describe what the Board sees as the ideal General Manager.  These Management Objectives will enhance internal and external communications, built understanding and trust in the District and its actions, develop partnerships and provide a system of accountability throughout the community.   


Most importantly the process of developing Management Objectives will assist the Board in fully understanding the role of the General Manager, and the level of effort and time required to fulfill these responsibilities.  The Management Objectives then become the basis for identifying the experience, skills, responsibilities, characteristics and expectations that then populate your GM job description and set their pay rate.


In order to set expectations for the General Manager, it is important for the Board to understand the core responsibilities of the primary District staff; the Office Supervisor/Board Secretary and the Water Operations Supervisor.  These two full time positions are the nucleus of service delivery and function as a cohesive unit under the General Manager.  These two positions lead and supervise their respective staffs and report directly to the General Manager.  In the LDPCSD sized organization; budget, service complexity and otherwise, these two positions can effectively manage the operations, leaving the core leadership, management and administrative responsibilities to the General Manager.  


Staff has been directed to advertise for a new General Manager, and the purpose of this agenda item is to prepare the Board for identifying the ideal General Manager for the future of the organization.  The District is at a crossroads in that the infrastructure is failing, funding is extremely limited, development is stalled, four managers have come and gone in the last decade and you have an amazingly talented staff that is ripe for solid leadership and continuity in management.  Rotating managers is also extremely costly and unproductive. Continuing to seek a General Manager hired pursuant to the existing job description is highly likely to produce the same results as it has in the past.  The time is now to take a detailed look at the organization and to establish the staffing regime for the future.  


This presentation is a combination of what currently exists today, and what experience tells us are the right roles for our key staff.  The discussion is intended to culminate in an understanding of the need and process for development of Management Goals and Objectives.  Publicly established Management Objectives serve as a very important action plan for the District, increasing transparency and ensuring that all management actions are aligned with and supportive of the District’s mission and the Board’s vision of the services provided.  


As an example of management objectives and how they relate to the current vision and needs of the Board, discussion has recently occurred in the Board meetings, individual conversations with Board members, in the public, and in my observations of District activities and needs about the following:


1) Based on the mission and vision as conveyed by the Board, develop a slate of service level benchmarks and standards based on our current operation as compared to industry standards, service needs, current issues such as drought and water loss, etc 

2) Evaluate various water rate structures to promote water conservation, ensure legal compliance and to balance the value of services received and their cost

3) Evaluate and convey to the Board options to enhance our community’s water supply quantity and reliability


4) Reduce water system leakage to within industry standards and develop a program of maintenance and capital improvements to ensure leaks remain under control


5) Prepare an update policy manual for all aspects of the District


6) Evaluate the District’s compensation package, average tenure, turnover rate and other indicators to stabilize employee costs in the long term


This is an example list of relevant objectives, however the Board should either direct staff to develop an initial slate of objectives for Board review, to schedule a special Board meeting within the next month and present a draft objectives list at that meeting, direct one Board member to work with the General Manager to develop an initial list for review at a special meeting, or a combination hereof.

Recommended Motion

Pending Board recommendation


[image: LDPCSD]

LAKE DON PEDRO

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT



OPERATIONS SUPERVISOR REPORT

                                                                    

Board of Directors Meeting

Monday, December 15th   2014



		End of Month Water Report

		

		

		

		



		Description

		CCF

		Acre/ft. 

		Percent

		 



		Water pumped from Lake McClure acre/ft.

		26921

		61.80

		 

		 



		Water pumped from Well acre/ft.

		1616

		3.71

		 

		 



		Total Pumped acre/ft.

		 

		65.51

		 

		 



		Last month acre/ft.

		 

		118.10

		 

		 



		Difference from last month %

		 

		 

		44.53%

		 



		Treated water sold acre/ft.

		18512

		42.50

		 

		 



		Last month treated water sold acre/ft.

		 

		40.53

		 

		 



		Difference from last month %

		 

		 

		4.63%

		 



		Golf course water sold acre/ft.

		0

		0.00

		 

		 



		Hydrant usage acre/ft

		0

		0.00

		 

		 



		Billed Metered Customers

		 

		 

		 

		1416



		Meters with no consumption this month

		 

		 

		 

		282



		Meters with no consumption last month

		 

		 

		 

		237



		Usage outside filed MID Place of Use

		548

		1.26

		 

		 



		Total acre/ft. Ranchito Well

		 

		3.71

		 

		 



		Backwash/Rinse on start up

		1110

		2.55

		 

		 



		Total water loss in acre/ft. (Backwashing, Leaks and Evaporation) 

		 

		20.47

		 

		 



		

		





		

		

		



		End of the Month MID LakeMcClure Readings

		

		

		

		



		Date of Reading

		12/1/2014

		

		

		



		Inflow

		0

		CFS (Cubic Feet Per Second)



		Storage

		75,916

		AF (Acre Feet)

		



		Elevation

		596.68

		Feet Above Mean Sea Level



		Outflow

		60

		CFS (Cubic Feet Per Second)



		Lake McClure Capacity

		1,024,600

		AF (Acre Feet)

		









1. Treatment Plant: No changes to report at this time.  



2. Distribution System: Leaks continue to be a concern for the District and I want to assure the public that our staff is working as fast as possible to stay on top of the problems we are contending with. In the recent past, the number of new leaks discovered has grown which reduces our ability to quickly address them.  We have secured the services of Njirich & Sons Construction who has partnered with us and are working under my direction to assist in addressing the worst leaks and to replace failed service lines.  In very short order, we should be on top of the known leaks where our excellent staff can address new leaks as they arise.  



Leak Repair Priority/Protocol:  I also want to mention again for everyone’s knowledge that leaks that are reported are not being ignored but are repaired in order of severity and the potential threat to public safety or property damage, not in the order they were reported. We have a small staff and an aging system that covers a large area so if a leak was reported and not repaired as timely as expected it may be due to other more pressing issues or other daily operations that cannot be put off. I want to make it clear to the public that our intentions are to replace all of the leaking lines and not just temporarily repair them.  Service line repairs can take hours to complete, but are typically a temporary Band-Aid; where service line replacement typically takes the full crew an entire day (of available time) but is the desired permanent solution.   Unfortunately, given the amount of leaks in the system, lack of normal work time leaves us time only to repair instead of replace so we can keep some control over the water loss. Again, we would like to thank the public for your patience. A current leak list is provided with this report.



November Activities:  During the month of November, staff had replaced two more leaking service lines and repaired a broken 4inch water main. The first weeks of December have seen increased leak repair and system upgrades which will be discussed next month.



3. Intake: I am pleased to announce that with the help of an outside contractor that Mr. Kampa hired, both of the leaks on our intake line at the lake have been repaired. I would like to thank Njirich & Sons Construction for their time and cooperation in helping us in our efforts to repair our aging system and conserve water. Not only did they repair leaks, but also replaced an entire section of 18-inch steel pipeline that had failed along its entire length due to being damaged during installation.  The trench for this pipe was nearly 20 feet in depth as shown in the following photos.



Randy Gilgo

Water Operations Supervisor/Chief Operator

Lake Don Pedro C.S.D.



[image: ]





[image: ]

[image: ][image: ]

[image: ]. 

image5.JPG



image6.JPG



image1.png



image2.JPG



image3.JPG



image4.JPG





